

Magnolia Public Schools

Nominating/Governance Committee Meeting

Date and Time Thursday November 18, 2021 at 5:00 PM PST

Location https://zoom.us/j/91949895682?pwd=UVpxbHRPTHdiUVJZcFFzc3BETIIjZz09

Meeting ID: 919 4989 5682 Passcode: 577733 One tap mobile: +16699009128,,91949895682# US (San Jose)

All members of the public can participate by calling in using the numbers provided above.

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) and upon request, Magnolia Public Schools may furnish reasonable auxiliary aids and services to qualified individuals with disabilities. Members of the public who need special accommodations or translation are strongly encouraged to contact Magnolia Public Schools at least 24 hours in advance of the Board meeting so assistance can be assured.

Any public records relating to an agenda item for an open session which are distributed to all, or a majority of all, of the Board Members shall be available for public inspection. Magnolia Public Schools values public comment during Board meetings. Pursuant to AB 361 members of the public may address the Board during the Public Comment period on the day of the board meeting without the need to complete a public speaker form. We limit individual speakers to three (3) minutes and speakers with interpreters to six (6) minutes. For any questions regarding this meeting email board@magnoliapublicschools.org or call 213-628-3634 Ext. 100.

Nominating Committee Members: Dr. Umit Yapanel, Chair Ms. Sandra Covarrubias Dr. Salih Dikbas (alternate)

CEO and Superintendent: Mr. Alfredo Rubalcava

Agenda

	Purpose	Presenter	Time
I. Opening Items			5:00 PM
Opening Items			
A. Call the Meeting to Order			1 m
B. Record Attendance and Guests			1 m
C. Approval of Agenda	Vote		1 m
D. Public Comments			1 m
E. Announcements from CEO & Superintendent and Committee Members			5 m
F. Approval of Minutes from MPS Regular Nominating/Governance Committee Meeting - April 12, 2021	Approve Minutes		1 m
II. Recommended Action Items			5:10 PM
A. Committee Approval of Findings to Conduct Virtual Meetings Pursuant to AB 361/Government Code Section 54953	Vote	A.Rubalcava	5 m
III. Information/Discussion Items			5:15 PM
A. Review and Discuss Magnolia Public Schools 2022-23 Board of Directors Handbook	Discuss	A.Rubalcava	35 m
IV. Closing Items			5:50 PM
A. Adjourn Meeting	Vote		

Coversheet

Approval of Minutes from MPS Regular Nominating/Governance Committee Meeting - April 12, 2021

Section:I. Opening ItemsItem:F. Approval of Minutes from MPS Regular Nominating/GovernanceCommittee Meeting - April 12, 2021Approve MinutesPurpose:Approve MinutesSubmitted by:Minutes for Nominating/Governance Committee Meeting on April 12, 2021

Magnolia Public Schools - Nominating/Governance Committee Meeting - Agenda - Thursday November 18, 2021 at 5:00 PM



Magnolia Public Schools

Minutes

Nominating/Governance Committee Meeting

Date and Time Mon Apr 12, 2021 at 5:30 PM

APPROVE

Location https://zoom.us/j/99385817894?pwd=ZDNpRm9sVXdUUVR3Tnl3dlNpUnVXZz09

Meeting ID: 993 8581 7894 Passcode: 713420 One tap mobile: +16699009128,,99385817894# US (San Jose)

Nominating Committee Members: Dr. Umit Yapanel, Chair Dr. Salih Dikbas Ms. Sandra Covarrubias Ms. Diane Gonzalez (alternate)

CEO and Superintendent: Mr. Alfredo Rubalcava

Committee Members Present

S. Covarrubias (remote), S. Dikbas (remote), U. Yapanel (remote)

Committee Members Absent
None

I. Opening Items

A. Call the Meeting to Order

U. Yapanel called a meeting of the Nominating/Governance Committee of Magnolia Public Schools to order on Monday Apr 12, 2021 at 5:38 PM.

B. Record Attendance and Guests

Refer to attendance information stated above.

C. Public Comments

I.Soto, Director of Development & Communications shared exciting news of Magnolia Science Academy-7's reopening being broadcasted in news media coverage. Four other Magnolia Science Academies also reopened during that time. A video of a channel's coverage was shown to the Board and members of the public.

D. Approval of Agenda

U. Yapanel made a motion to approve the agenda as presented.S. Covarrubias seconded the motion.The committee **VOTED** unanimously to approve the motion.

Roll Call

- S. Covarrubias Aye
- U. Yapanel Aye
- S. Dikbas Aye

E. Approve Minutes of Regular Nominating/Governance Committee Meeting from March 29, 2021

U. Yapanel made a motion to approve the minutes from Nominating/Governance Committee Meeting on 03-29-21.

S. Covarrubias seconded the motion.

The committee VOTED unanimously to approve the motion.

Roll Call

S. Dikbas Aye U. Yapanel Aye S. Covarrubias Aye

II. Information/Discussion Items

A. Discussion Regarding the Creation of the MPS Development Committee

I.Soto, Director of Development and Communications presented to the Committee the initial description, goals and initiatives of the Development Committee. The Committee is a combination of development and outreach efforts lead by the Board and supported by staff. The Development Committee reviews policies and procedures of fundraising programs and ensures the appropriate use of funds. It's goal is to cultivate donors and build those relationships for the support of Magnolia students and programs. Discussion regarding whether the Development Committee should be combined with the Stakeholder Committee or be a separate Committee was discussed. Staff and Committee Members provided feedback. Another discussion will be held with the full Board for their guidance.

III. Closing Items

A. Adjourn Meeting

There being no further business to be transacted, and upon motion duly made, seconded and approved, the meeting was adjourned at 6:13 PM.

Respectfully Submitted, U. Yapanel

Coversheet

Committee Approval of Findings to Conduct Virtual Meetings Pursuant to AB 361/Government Code Section 54953

Section:	II. Recommended Action Items
Item:	A. Committee Approval of Findings to Conduct Virtual Meetings Pursuant
to AB 361/Government (Code Section 54953
Purpose:	Vote
Submitted by:	
Related Material:	AB 361 Initial Findings (Nominating.Governance Committee).pdf



Board Agenda Item #	II A: Recommended Action Item
Date:	November 18, 2021
То:	Magnolia Public Schools – Nominating/Governance Committee
From:	Alfredo Rubalcava, CEO & Superintendent
Staff Lead:	Alfredo Rubalcava, CEO & Superintendent
RE:	Committee Approval of Findings to Conduct Virtual Meetings Pursuant to AB 361/Government Code Section 54953

Proposed Board Recommendation

I move for the Nominating/Governance Committee to adopt the findings relating to the ability of the Magnolia Public Schools Nominating/Governance Committee to conduct meetings due to teleconference during the State of Emergency, in reference to AB 361/Government Code Section 54953.

Introduction

In September 16, 2021, Governor Newsom signed executive order Assembly Bill (AB) 361 into law which gives local agencies, included local educational agencies (LEA) governing boards, flexibility in conducting public meetings virtually during a declared state of emergency. While AB 361 offers flexibilities similar to the expiring Executive Order N-29-20, there are some key difference in regards to public comment and meeting operations.

In order for Magnolia Public Schools (MPS) Board Meetings to trigger the AB 361 teleconferencing provisions, any of the following circumstances must follow:

- The legislative body holds a meeting during a proclaimed state of emergency, and state or local officials have imposed or recommended measures to promote social distancing
- The legislative body holds a meeting during a proclaimed state of emergency for the purpose of determining by majority vote whether, as a result of the emergency, meeting in person would present imminent risks to the health or safety of attendees
- The legislative body holds a meeting during a proclaimed state of emergency and has determined by majority vote that, as a result of the emergency, meeting in person would present imminent risks to the health or safety of attendees

Requirements under this new law include; notice of the meeting and post agendas as the Brown Act requires on our MPS websites and school sites; allow public to access the meeting and give notice for how the public can access the

250 E. 1st Street Suite 1500, Los Angeles, CA 90012 | www.magnoliapublicschools.org

meeting; include in the agenda an opportunity for all persons to attend via call-in or internet-based service; provides opportunity for the public to offer comment in the real time; provide public comment period; conduct meetings in a manner that protects the statutory and constitutional rights of the parties and the public appearing before the board; in an event of a disruption that prevents MPS from broadcasting the meeting or prevents members of the public from offering public comment, the meeting must stop and no action can be taken until access is restored.

MPS Board of Directors must make the following findings every 30 days by majority vote in order to continue utilizing the bills teleconferencing provisions which include:

- The legislative body has reconsidered the circumstances of the state of emergency
- Any of the following circumstances exist:
 - The state of emergency continues to directly impact the ability of the members to meet safely in person
 - o State or local officials continue to impose or recommend measures to promote social distancing

Background

In March 2020, Governor Newsom issued Executive Order N-29-20, which, among other things, temporarily suspended certain Brown Act teleconference meeting requirements for as long as public health agencies have imposed or recommended social distancing measures, as the COVID-19 pandemic has made them unsafe. This law will sunset through September 30, 2021.

Analysis

As recommended by MPS legal counsel, Young, Minney & Corr, LLP all MPS Committee's must vote on a separate for those Committee's to follow the provisions under AB 361.

Budget Implications

N/A

Exhibits (Attachments):

• Findings for Nominating/Governance Committee Pursuant to Government Code 54953(e)(3)



Magnolia Public Schools

Charter School Board Findings pursuant to Government Code Section 54953(e)(1)(A)

Pursuant to Government Code Section 54953(e)(1)(A), the Magnolia Public Schools Nominating/Governance Committee finds as follows:

- (1) a state of emergency exists in California (see, Proclamation of State of Emergency declared March 4, 2020) related to COVID-19; and
- (2) the County of Los Angeles Department of Public Health currently recommends measures to promote social distancing (see, LADPH Reducing Risk Guidance dated September 22, 2021.)

Therefore, the Committee may conduct this meeting via teleconference pursuant to Government Code Section 54953(e).

DATE: November 18, 2021

VOTE

AYE:

NOES:

ABSENT:

BOARD SECRETARY:	

Coversheet

Review and Discuss Magnolia Public Schools 2022-23 Board of Directors Handbook

Section: Item:	III. Information/Discussion Items A. Review and Discuss Magnolia Public Schools 2022-23 Board of
Directors Handbook Purpose: Submitted by:	Discuss
Related Material:	Draft Board Handbook Template_2022-23.pdf



BOARD OF DIRECTORS HANDBOOK 2022-23

TABLE OF CONTENTS

OVERVIEW OF MAGNOLIA PUBLIC SCHOOLS

History of MPS	Х
Vision & Mission	Х
School Locations	Х
Portrait of a Graduate	Х
2021-22 MPS Goals	Х

GENERAL BOARD INFORMATION

Board Contact Information	Х
Board Member Profiles	Х

BOARD OVERVIEW AND RESPONSIBILITIES

Board Overview	Х
Board Responsibilities	Х
Board Roles	Х
Board Recruitment Process	Х
Chief Executive Officer Commitments	Х

BOARD COMMITTEES

Governance / Nominating Committee	Х
Finance Committee	Х
Facility / Audit Committee	Х
Academic Committee	Х
Development / Stakeholder Committee	Х

BOARD & COMMITTEE MEETING CALENDAR

Board Calendar	Х
CommitteeCalendar	Х

SAMPLE BOARD MEETING AGENDA

Board Meeting Agenda	X

HOME OFFICE LEADERSHIP

Executive Team	Х
Directors	Х
Staff	Х
Stall	Λ

BOARD POLICIES

MPS Board of Directors Bylaws	Х
Conflict of Interest Policy	Х
Conflict of Interest Code	Х

OVERVIEW OF MAGNOLIA PUBLIC SCHOOLS



3

HISTORY OF MPS

The Magnolia Educational & Research Foundation ("Foundation") dba Magnolia Public Schools (MPS) is a non-profit organization established in August 1997. The Foundation is granted tax-exemption status (501(c)(3)) by the IRS and the State of California. The headquarters of the Foundation is located in Downtown Los Angeles, California. MPS oversees a network of charter schools throughout California dedicated to inspiring students to choose career paths in Science, Technology, Engineering, Art, and Math (STEAM), while providing a robust, standards-based education program within a supportive culture of excellence.

In 1998, the Foundation began organizing volunteer tutors for middle and high schools, especially in math, science and computer technology areas by utilizing their connections to major research universities throughout Southern California.

In 1999, the Foundation organized and implemented a joint program with Culver City Unified School District to provide tutoring for students all around the city. It also started a free tutoring program in the Sherman Oaks/Van Nuys Area of the San Fernando Valley. These programs resulted in cooperation with school districts to develop partnerships to support educational initiatives.

In the fall of 2002, the Foundation established its first charter school, Magnolia Science Academy-1 ("MSA-1"), in the San Fernando Valley. Since then, the Foundation has successfully replicated its educational program and philosophy at 9 other charter school sites throughout California.

OUR MISSION

Aggnolia Public Schools provides a safe and nurturing community using a vhole-child approach to provide a high-quality, college preparatory STEAM ducational experience in an environment hat cultivates respect for self and others.

OUR VISION

,

Graduates of Magnolia Public Schools commit to building a more peaceful and inclusive global society by transforming traditional ideas with creative thinking, effective communication, and the rigor of

ation, and the rigor of science.



VISION & MISSION

OUR VISION

Graduates of Magnolia Public Schools commit to building a more peaceful and inclusive global society by transforming traditional ideas with creative thinking, effective communication, and the rigor of science.

OUR MISSION

Magnolia Public Schools provides a safe and nurturing community using a whole-child approach to provide a high-quality, college preparatory STEAM educational experience in an environment that cultivates respect for self and others.

4

SCHOOL LOCATIONS

LOS ANGELES

Magnolia Science Academy -1 Reseda (Gr. 6-12) 18238 Sherman Way, Reseda, CA 91335 (818) 609-0507

Magnolia Science Academy - 2 Valley (Gr. 6-12) 17125 Victory Blvd., Van Nuys, CA 91406 (818) 758-0300

Magnolia Science Academy - 3 Carson (Gr. 6-12) 1254 E. Helmick St., Carson, CA 90746 (310) 637-3806

Magnolia Science Academy - 4 Venice (Gr. 6-12) 11330 W. Graham Pl., Los Angeles, CA 90064 (310) 473-2464

Magnolia Science Academy - 5 Los Lobos (Gr. 6-12) 18238 Sherman Way, Reseda, CA 91335 (818) 705-5676

Magnolia Science Academy - 6 (Gr. 6-8) 1512 Arlington Ave., Los Angeles, CA 90019 (310) 842-8555

Magnolia Science Academy - 7 Northridge (Gr. TK-5) 18355 Roscoe Blvd., Northridge, CA 91325 (818) 886-0585

Magnolia Science Academy - 8 Bell (Gr. 6-8) 6411 Orchard Ave., Bell, CA 90201 (323) 826-3925

ORANGE COUNTY

Magnolia Science Academy - Santa Ana (Gr. TK-12) 2840 W. 1st St., Santa Ana, CA 92703 (714) 479-0115

SAN DIEGO COUNTY

Magnolia Science Academy - San Diego (Gr. 6-8) 6525 Estrella Ave., San Diego, CA 92120 (619) 644-1300



PORTRAIT OF A GRADUATE

Our GOAL with Portrait of a Graduate was to craft a collective vision for Magnolia Public Schools that articulates our organization and community's aspirations for our students now and into the future.

At Magnolia Public Schools (MPS), our approach is an ongoing education effort, where our board of directors, home office, school leadership, teachers, families, students, and community are all viewed as one unified group. Magnolia's education program aims to create a nurturing community using a whole-child approach and has expanded on the successful community connections by building relationships with families and the surrounding communities that address the mutual interests of all parties through the Magnolia Public Schools - Portrait of a Graduate project.

Our overarching objective at Magnolia Public Schools is to create a vibrant and mutually beneficial partnership between school and community that supports our students' academic and personal success while addressing the needs of the communities we serve. With the focused conversation about knowledge, skills, mindsets, and literacies essential for 21st-century student success, the Magnolia Portrait of a Graduate Design Team has successfully crafted the meaning behind the Portrait. Through a design process that intentionally engaged our Magnolia community, the Portrait became our community's stated vision for Magnolia students.

We brought together a cross-section of Magnolia stakeholders to co-create the Magnolia Portrait of a Graduate that included 23 home office and school site leaders, a member of Magnolia's board, teachers, current twelfth-grade students, alumni, parents, and members of our community to form the Portrait of a Graduate Design Team.

The Portrait of a Graduate is the first step in framing a new vision for Magnolia Public Schools. Now that we have created our portrait, the exciting work of implementing this new vision begins in the Fall of 2021!

PORTRAIT OF A GRADUATE COMPETENCIES

The following are SIX COMPETENCIES and descriptions that the Portrait of a Graduate Design Team determined is important to include in our community's Portrait.

- Literacy with a Learner's Mindset
- Critical Thinking
- Creativity
- Effective Communication
- Adaptability
- Global Citizenship

6

Magnolia Graduate Profile

LITERACY WITH A LEARNER'S MINDSET

To demonstrate a depth of knowledge and literacy in multiple subject areas to make informed decisions. Students will overcome challenges by developing a positive attitude and belief about learning, embracing curiosity to experience new ideas, and sustaining the desire to learn, unlearn, and relearn.



CREATIVITY

To demonstrate originality, imagination, and new ways of thinking critically and independently. Students will transcend traditional ideas, rules, patterns, and relationships to create and convey new or meaningful ideas, methods, or interpretations.

ADAPTABILITY

To demonstrate flexibility when acclimating to various roles and situations. Students will work effectively in a climate of ambiguity and changing priorities, demonstrating agility in thoughts and actions. They will understand, negotiate, and balance diverse views and beliefs to reach workable solutions, responding productively to feedback, praise, setbacks, and criticism.

GLOBAL CITIZENSHIP

To contribute to making the world a better place. Students will understand the world and its complexities, value and embrace diverse cultures and unique perspectives through mutual respect and open dialog, cultivate compassion, and take action in building more peaceful and inclusive environments.

CRITICAL THINKING

To problem solve by identifying, evaluating, and prioritizing solutions to difficult or complex situations, and implementing and reflecting critically on a solution.

EFFECTIVE COMMUNICATION

To articulate thoughts and ideas effectively using oral, written, and non-verbal communication skills in a variety of forms and contexts, for a range of purposes and audiences. Students will also demonstrate empathy through awareness, sensitivity, concern, and respect for others' feelings, opinions, experiences, and culture.

SCHOOLWIDE LEARNING OUTCOMES (SLOs)

Turning our Portrait of a Graduate into a Reality for Every Student at Magnolia

The serious implementation of our portrait requires a thorough analysis of our Charter Management Organization (CMO) systems to identify the changes that will be required to take vision to scale including but not limited to strategic planning where Magnolia will use our newly developed portrait as the key driver of strategic planning. The Magnolia Public Schools academic department, led by the Chief Academic Officer will lead the Systems Design effort with school site leaders including Principals, Assistant Principals, and Deans to align all aspects of Magnolia Public Schools to make the newly developed Portrait of a Graduate a reality for every student. More specifically, the efforts will focus on the MPS Schoolwide Learning Outcomes (SLOs).

Magnolia's Schoolwide Learner Outcomes (SLOs)

LITERACY WITH A LEARNER'S MINDSET

- Develop and implement literacy skills that impact all content areas so that they can be well-rounded individuals within society.
- Meaningfully engage in learning activities by knowing their readiness levels, interests, backgrounds, and making informed decisions about their learning pathways.
- Take ownership of their learning by creating long and short-term academic goals and reflecting on them throughout the school year.

ADAPTABILITY

- Develop self-awareness and self-advocacy skills and maintain physical, mental, social, and emotional well-being to guide in their pursuit towards a college degree and career choices.
- Collaborate, work effectively, and manage interpersonal relationships within diverse groups and settings. Respond productively to feedback, praise, setbacks, and criticism.
- Demonstrate consideration of others' ideas by keeping an open mind, questioning ideas, and demonstrating flexible thinking.

EFFECTIVE COMMUNICATION

- Demonstrate effective oral and written communication skills, using the expected academic language for the purpose, audience, and setting.
- Develop listening skills and exhibit empathy through awareness, sensitivity, concern, and respect for self and others' feelings, opinions, experiences, and cultures.
- Use technology effectively and respectfully to access, organize, research, and present information to become proficient communicators.



CRITICAL THINKING

- Apply, analyze, identify, synthesize and evaluate information and experiences and connect the skills and content learned across the curriculum.
- Are inspired to be lifelong readers and critical thinkers.
- Are able to take a variety of sources and viewpoints, evaluate them critically, and make judgments that reflect an understanding of the possible consequences of those decisions.

CREATIVITY

- Apply innovative skills and practices which connect to their learning experiences.
- Have opportunities for multiple methods of the expression of ideas in a project (ex. writing, drawing, creating video, slide presentations, memes).
- Incorporate new and meaningful ideas and methods through cross-curricular STEAM activities.

GLOBAL CITIZENSHIP

- Contribute to the improvement of life in their school and local community by demonstrating leadership skills and participating in community-based projects.
- Understand and reflect on connections between their local community and the broader world, through both current events and historical context.
- Are internationally-minded individuals who recognize and value other perspectives and cultures.



8

2021-22 MPS GOALS



9

GENERAL BOARD INFORMATION



BOARD MEMBER PROFILES

Ms. Sandra Covarrubias graduated from Casa Loma College for Licensed Vocational Nursing. She also is a Certified Nursing Assistant. She has certifications in BLS and PALS from the American Heart Association. She has six years of professional experience as a Vocational Nurse at Amity Home Health in Granada Hills, Majesty Hospice in Los Angeles, and All Saints HealthCare in North Hollywood. Some of her duties were to provide nursing care to pediatric patients, aid in daily living activities, administer medication, obtain assessments of the patients, comfort patients and families with long-term ventilator dependence and deteriorating disease, and keep track of all patient documentation, including nurses notes, weekly summaries, incident reports, and care plans.

MPS Board Chair - LA Rep Former Vocational Nurse First Term Expires: 8/10/2022 scovarrubias@magnoliapublicschools.org

Dr. Umit Yapanel obtained his BS degree in Electronics and Communications Engineering in 1997, ranked 2nd in his class. He obtained two Master of Science degrees: one in Communications Engineering in 2000 and one in Electrical and Computer Engineering in 2001. From 2000 to 2004, he pursued his PhD degree in Automatic Speech Recognition at the University of Colorado at Boulder. He was an intern for two summers at IBM's TJ Watson Research Center in New York. Dr. Yapanel has published a book chapter, 8 journal articles, and more than 15 conference papers in the area of Automatic Speech Recognition and Child Language Development. In the past, Dr. Yapanel served as a founding board member from 2003-2007 at Lotus School for Excellence (LSE) a STEM charter school currently operating in Aurora, CO. Between 2007-2012, he has served as the board president of the school. Throughout the years, he has been involved in almost all aspects of school operations at Lotus; from doing the payroll in initial years to writing grants, purchasing its current facility to elementary school expansion. His vision for MPS is to create a network of schools to provide a world-class STE(A)M education to all of its students. His major mission is to help inspire more students to become the future scientists and engineers, as our Nation is facing a shortage of such qualified workforce.

MPS Board Vice-Chair

Senior Manager, Capital One Financial Second Term Expires: 10/11/2022 uyapanel@magnoliapublicschools.org

Ms. Diane Gonzalez Since joining the FBI 57 years ago Ms. Gonzalez has worked in various positions, some classified and some unclassified, but always in sensitive areas. She has held several Supervisory positions during her years with the Bureau. In 2001, Ms. Gonzalez became the Community Outreach Coordinator (COS) for the Los Angeles FBI Office, a rewarding position which she holds to this day. As a Community Outreach Specialist (COS) for the last 13 years, she has interacted with all the educational, religious and ethnic groups in Southern California. She has been responsible for beginning the first FBI- Citizens' Academy Classes servicing the great Los Angeles Area. She also started the Junior Special Agent Program for the Office and a reading program at the Bessie Pregerson Child Develop Center for underprivileged youths in a partnership with the Salvation Army Westwood. She is also on the Salvation Army Westwood Transitional Village (WTV) Advisory Council and has implemented the Community Relations Executive Seminar Training Program (CREST) in numerous ethnic and religious communities. In 2004 she helped to coordinate

the FBI's Multi Cultural Advisory Committee. Ms. Gonzalez teaches and is certified to teach Internet and Identity Theft Classes to both students and adults. She is a coordinator and is part of the Special Olympics of Southern California for Law Enforcement Torch Run Council. She helps to coordinate the FBI's interagency communication and emergency response efforts.

MPS Board Member - LA Rep

Community Outreach Coordinator, FBI Second Term Expires: 12/9/2024 drgonzalez@magnoliapublicschools.org

Dr. Salih Dikbas joined Qualcomm Inc. in 2013 as a Staff Engineer. Prior to Qualcomm Inc., Dr. Dikbas was a System Engineer for Texas Instruments Inc. and helved develop a frame noise algorithm and co-authored the proposal of TI for next-generation video standard. Dr. Dikbas received his degree from Middle East Technical University, a M.S. from Clemson University and Ph.D. from Georgia Institute of Technology.

MPS Board Member - SD Rep Senior Staff Engineer, QualComm Inc. Second Term Expires: 12/9/2024 sdikbas@magnoliapublicschools.org

Mr. Mekan Muhammedov A real estate investor and entrepreneur, Mekan Muhammedov is an executive with a passion for optimizing business operations. Prior to joining the Board, Mr. Muhammedov served as executive director of GG Construction in Dubai. He has a long history with Magnolia, having been employed by the organization between 2005 and 2014.

MPS Board Member - Orange Rep Real Estate Investor & Entrepreneur First Term Expires: 4/23/2025 mekan@magnoliapublicschools.org

Board members serve five-year staggered terms with the option to be reappointed at the pleasure of the Board of Directors. Regular meetings are held on the second Thursday of each month unless the second Thursday of the month should fall on a legal holiday in which event the meeting will be scheduled appropriately. The meeting schedule is designed to meet operational and compliance requirements.

BOARD OVERVIEW AND RESPONSIBILITIES



BOARD OVERVIEW

The mission of the Board of Directors of Magnolia Public Schools is to provide concrete skills and expertise to the organization through leadership, commitment, support and oversight. Board Members are committed to supporting the values, mission, and vision of the organization with a lack of personal agenda, with an entrepreneurial spirit and through critical and strategic thinking.

Board members serve five-year staggered terms with the option to be reappointed at the pleasure of the Board of Directors. Regular meetings are held on the second Thursday of each month unless the second Thursday of the month should fall on a legal holiday in which event the meeting will be scheduled appropriately. The meeting schedule is designed to meet operational and compliance requirements.

BOARD RESPONSIBILITIES

MPS Board Members are committed to the following:

Attendance and leadership

Board members are expected to:

- Arrange their schedules around the board meeting calendar to ensure quorum and active participation and discussion. It is expected that Board members come prepared to meetings by reading materials beforehand
- Participate in at least one committee
- Visit one school per year

Actively promote MPS in the community

Board members are expected to:

- Attend education events, identify and cultivate influencers, introduce MPS to community members and expand MPS circles of influence
- Be abreast of issues by following K-12 education news and topics on a regular basis

Build the Board

Board members are expected to:

- > Actively identify individuals to help broaden, strengthen and diversity the board
- Foster a culture of excellence within the board and leading by example (attending, preparing, committing, delivering)

Provide Specialized Assistance / Other

Board members should lend specialized skills that can help the organization

BOARD ROLES

MISSION

- Understand and support MPS mission as a community resource throughout Southern California
- Serve as ambassadors and advocates for MPS by promoting the mission within their personal networks and the broader community

STRATEGY

- Review and provide feedback on both the short- and long-term goals and strategic plans of MPS to help the organization further its mission and achieve its vision
- Develop the strength of the board through recruitment, self-assessment, and training
- Ensure that the academic program of MPS is successful, that the school's program and operation are faithful to the terms of its charter, and that the school is a viable organization
- Review annual organizational plan that includes concrete, measurable goals consistent with the charter and accountability plan.

GOVERNANCE

- Be an informed and engaged stakeholder, including attending board and committee meetings
- Understand and comply with the regulatory and legal requirements required a director of a public agency
- Ensure that MPS complies with state and federal regulations and upholds the mission of the charter
- ▶ Review, advise, support and hold accountable the CEO
- > Provide fiscal oversight and monitor the organization's programs and services
- Ensure MPS is compliant with its internal policies and procedures
- Comply with all meeting requirements and administrative functions as outlined in the charters and bylaws
- Review and understand MPS' academic performance results as compared with its stated goals and similar schools

BOARD RECRUITMENT PROCESS

The MPS Board will seek to add new members as needed, there should be at least three board members and no more than eleven at any given time. The organization commits to designating at least one director who resides in each county where this corporation operates a charter school and to have at least one parent representative at all times.

The board has approved the creation of an Advisory Council, which is a non-decision making body, with the goal that after six months, members of this committee will gain the experience and background needed to be part of the full board. Essentially, this council will become a "pool" of Board Members, and all new MPS Board Members, will be pulled from this group of experts when candidates are available. Once candidates have been proposed, the MPS Nominating Committee will give their recommendations to the full board at least seven (7) days before the date of the designation or at such other times as the Board of Directors may set. Any member of the community may also refer a potential candidate to the Board for consideration.

In order to build a strong and diverse board that represents the communities we serve, we ask for referrals from teachers, local politicians, administrators from local nonprofits, affinity groups and all others than can make great connections.

It is mandatory that a potential board member visit an MPS school at least once before they are nominated for the board. Making the time for this tour will show their commitment and availability to the board. One Board Member and one staff member will be assigned to meet with each candidate to test for mission/culture fit and to ask the following questions:

- What is your past governance experience? Do you believe the board you served on was effective? Why or why not?
- Where are you from? Neighborhood, school, personal story.
- What work do you do right now? How might this work support the mission of this school?
- > Why might you want to support this school? What unique contribution will you bring?
- What ideas if any do you have to leverage your networks and connections that could benefit the school?
- How might you advocate for the school publicly and privately?
- Do you have any past issues or conflict of interests that could potentially interfere with your service on the board?

Specific Board Needs:

- Diversity, including geography, ethnicity, functional skills, expertise, and community connections
- Specific skills/work experience/community relations
- Fundraising expertise
- Management/leadership experience including scaling organizations
- Marketing/PR experience
- HR, talent and recruitment

First Three Months of Board Membership:

Orientation Phase

Prepare the new Board Member to quickly become an asset to the organization by doing the following:

- Building relationships with other Board Members
 - Meet with the Board Chair to review:
 - Responsibilities and expectations
 - Committee structures and assignments
 - Agenda and minutes from prior board meeting
 - > Annual agenda and calendar for board and committees
 - Debrief after first board meeting with Board Chair and CEO
 - Coffee with 2-3 Board Members

▶ Meeting with CEO to review the Board Handbook specific to:

- Organizational chart
- Organizational goals
- Talking points about local district, state education reform landscape
- Introduction to senior leadership team and overview of their areas of focus:

Chief Executive Officer & Superintendent

The CEO embodies, advocates, and puts into operation the vision, mission, and strategic direction of MPS, and oversees all aspects of the organization, including financial, operational, educational operations, and strategic planning. The CEO is not a member of the Board, but will fulfill the role of the corporation's general manager and will have general supervision, direction, and control over the corporation's business and officers, subject to the control of the Board. The CEO hires, supervises, disciplines, and as needed, dismisses the Charter School's Principal, who, in collaboration with the CEO and the HR department at the MPS Home Office, hires, promotes, disciplines, and as needed, dismisses staff and teachers at the Charter School. The CEO also oversees hiring, supervision, professional development, evaluation and dismissal of all C-level positions at the Home Office. All the C-level positions (those with the word "Chief" in the title) report to the CEO. The Board ensures that the CEO is evaluated formally at least once annually, and the CEO, in turn, evaluates the Home Office staff.

Chief Financial Officer (annual budget, audits, monthly financials)

The CFO is responsible for the financial performance of MPS and each of its schools. The CFO provides effective leadership to ensure sustainability, growth, and expansion and advises the CEO and Board on strategic financial plan, financial analysis and business modeling. The CFO ensures ethical and responsible decision-making, and appropriate financial management and governance practices.

Chief Operations Officer (school operations, human resources)

The COO leads all internal operations and, working in partnership with the Magnolia's Home Office Executive Team, Board and other leaders, creates the strategic five-year plan and implement new processes and approaches to achieve it. The COO serves as the internal leader of MPS, coordinating the annual operations plan and leading the performance management process that measures and evaluates progress against goals for the MPS. The COO provides for all staff a strong day-to day leadership presence; bridges all functions and supports an open-door policy among all staff; provides Board support; and leads the organization's Regional Directors and Principals. Additionally, the COO directs and manages the various core business, financial, process, and systems functions of the MPS centralized Human Resources Department. Provides strategic and operational direction to assigned organizational components, and provides leadership to the institution in strategic human resources planning and policy, process, and systems development. Directs organizational structuring and staffing, and oversees the supervision of all managerial, professional, paraprofessional, and support staff in each organizational component. Facilities and Technology Departments report to the COO as well.

Chief Academic Officer (annual school goals, curriculum, academic data)

Reporting to the CEO, the CAO is responsible for both sustaining and improving the culture of high academic excellence in all Magnolia Public Schools. The school administrators at each Charter School as well as the curriculum and instructional support staff report directly to the CAO, who has primary authority and accountability for the academic performance of all schools. The CAO provides leadership, vision, and strategic direction for MPS' curriculum, instruction, assessment and school improvement initiatives overseeing professional development for all school leaders and supervising academic management of the Charter Schools.

General Counsel and Facilities Director (facility projects, campus searches, legal communication and review) The General Counsel and Director of Facilities is responsible for working with architects, developers and consultants on the acquisition, design and construction of new facilities; planning, and project managing capital and tenant improvements; negotiating and managing leases; and managing relationships with landlords. The General Counsel and Director of Facilities also reviews vendor contracts.

Chief Accountability Officer (policies, authorizer accountability, state compliance) The Chief Accountability Officer is responsible for overseeing all non-financial reporting and compliance functions, preparing and implementing the annual surveys, and ensuring that the organization and staff use consistent, rigorous evaluation tools to maintain the efficacy of Magnolia programs.

Beyond Three Months of Board Membership:

- Attend Committee and Board meetings
- Attend bi-annual Board Retreat
- Attend MPS events and school functions
- Attend MPS Wide STEAM EXPO
- Attend CCSA Conference

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S COMMITMENTS

COMMITMENT TO MPS BOARD MEMBERS

I fully commit to the MPS Board in the following ways:

- ▶ I will be mindful of the time commitments of the Board members
- I will commit the time to inform the Board members of all of the important issues related to the organization
- I will provide you in a timely way with the information you need to be an effective board member.
- ▶ I will prepare and/or review all written communication in advance of the Board meetings for items requiring decision-making, a vote, or affecting policy
- ▶ I will commit to making myself available for Board member questions
- I will manage the organization in the best way I know how by adhering to actions approved by the Board and by respecting the advice of the Board members
- I will provide Board liability insurance

CEO METRICS

Academic / Accountability

- Return to success full instruction and pivot post COVID opening of MPS Schools; 100% Four-Year Cohort Graduation Rate and 100% UC/CSU A-G Course Completion Rate across all MPS;
- All student groups across MPS will show growth on the CAASPP-ELA/Literacy and Mathematics assessments by a 3-point or more increase from the prior year as measured by the CA School Dashboard;
- ▶ 50% or more of all MPS students will be proficient on the CAASPP-ELA/Literacy assessments and 35% or more will be proficient on the CAASPP-Mathematics assessments, with the ultimate goal of 100% proficiency for all;
- ▶ 60% or more of all students will meet their growth targets on the MAP-Reading and Mathematics assessments, with the ultimate goal of 100%;
- All students across MPS will meet their expected growth targets in Reading as measured by the Lexile metrics;
- All MPS sites will organize a STEAM Festival/EXPO, with 100% of students creating and demonstrating a STEAM focused project, experiment, model or demo;
- Average Daily Attendance (ADA) Rate of 97% or more, with the ultimate goal of 100% ADA Rate;
- MPS will develop, align, and improve academic and behavioral resources, programs, supports, and services in addressing the needs of the whole child by utilizing a coherent MTSS framework that engages all systems leading to improved student outcomes; School experience survey participation and satisfaction rates of 85% or more for students, parents, teachers, and staff, with the ultimate goal of 100% participation and satisfaction rates;
- All MPS sites will maintain their WASC accreditation;

- All MPS sites will have successful authorizer oversight visits;
- Keep strengthening MPS' standards-based curriculum complete with scope and sequences for all subjects taught at every existing and expected grade level that exceeds national academic standards.

Personnel and Human Resources (HR)

- Clear and detailed strategy for teacher recruitment and staff retention.
- Expand the salary scale to include a performance-based evaluation for home office staff.
- Delegation of authority the executive staff are required to perform their duties effectively in support of the overall success of the organization. Magnolia Public Schools (MPS) Executive staff will have current job descriptions that include evaluation metrics and the frequency of a performance evaluation. The performance evaluation will include the Board recommendation for a 6-month evaluation and a year-end evaluation to determine if the performance is acceptable.
- All the personnel paperwork documentation required by the authorizers, state and federal agencies will be ready before the first day of employment for every school year for every staff member. Staff employment paperwork which must be provided within a certain time frame, mandatory training which must be completed within a certain deadline will be completed by each staff member before respective deadlines. Human Resources will continue assisting school sites with authorizer site visits.
- MPS Employee Handbook and MPS Employee Agreements will be revised every year with respect to evolving needs and changing Labor Codes and Laws as well as post COVID-19 changes that need to be made.
- HR will enhance onboarding process to give extra support to the School Site Leaders.
- HR will provide more features of PayCom (HRIS online software system) to provide more options and keep MPS HR procedures aligned across all school sites.

Mangement & Board Oversight

- Clear, transparent and timely communication between MPS Home Office and MPS Board with timely reporting of any critical development and communication with other local agencies to the board;
- All committees are to meet each academic year according to a schedule set at the beginning of the academic year. Board members are to conduct committee meetings directly with responsible C-team members. All C-team members should present items directly to corresponding committee members in their respective areas with the CEO serving as facilitator of the discussion;
- In conjunction with the Board, continue to develop an effective public relation, marketing, and fundraising plan for 2021-22;

Secure philanthropic support that directly supports the mission and vision for 2021-22. Report annually to the board on C-Team and school site performance;

- Train and support new board members appointed due to vacancies and in compliance with the terms of authorizer directions;
- Passing reports from authorizer site visits.

Finance

- Manage post Covid-19 financial uncertainty, utilize one-time state and federal funds effectively;
- Justify and explain any budget fluctuations over 3% from the June budget. Remain within 3% of the Pl revised budget through the conclusion of the fiscal year;
- Secure private financing for obtaining private facilities for all of the co-located sites;
- Positive net income for combined all schools and Home Office at the end of the year;
- Improving compensation and support for school site staff;
- Unqualified independent audit report;
- Update the five-year capital plan following the bond issuance;
- Continue to provide leadership in the areas of financial planning, budgeting, accounting and management of the organization's financial resources;
- Maintain accurate accounting, payroll, cash management, and insurance systems are maintained.

Facilities

- Prepare a strategic plan for all schools at Prop 39 facilities;
- Support all schools in the process of acquiring their own facilities especially concentrate on MSA-5 securing private facility;
- Completion of capital improvement projects funded by grant;
- Implement asset management system to make sure that preventative maintenance action is taken to avoid large unplanned facilities/capital expenditures;
- > Oversee, monitor, and maintain current requirements of facility leases;
- Apply for facility grants such as SB 740 and CSFIG;
- Continue overseeing that all physical environment reflects the organization's mission and values as well as enhances learning. Improve fundraising and philanthropic efforts to improve/invest in facilities.

Stakeholders

- Increase enrollment and improve efficiency of enrollment process. As well as strengthen enrollment campaign in conjunction with school sites;
- Extensively engage all MPS stakeholders such as parents, students, teachers and the local community in crafting the strategies, implementing academic policies and engaging in civic participation. School site leaders or MPS Central Office should address any concerns by these stakeholders in a timely manner;
- Continue to strengthen the MPS parent programs across all schools;
- Develop Partnerships to bring in more resources and utilize strategic planning for philanthropic partnerships;
- > Optimize resources to the fullest extent to achieve organization efficacy at highest level.

BOARD COMMITTEES

GOVERNANCE / NOMINATING COMMITTEE

The Governance/Nominating Committee is commissioned by and responsible to the Board of Directors to assume the primary responsibility for matters pertaining to Board of Directors recruitment, nominations, orientation, training, and evaluation in accordance with the bylaws of the organization as well as established policies and practices approved by the board and hiring the CEO.

Related to the full board:

- Analyze the skills and experience needed on the Board.
- Create a short and long-term board recruitment strategy.
- Work with Board Chair and CEO on a succession plan for board officers.
- Develop and review annually the procedures for Board recruitment.
- Develop an orientation and training plan for new trustees.
- Assist in the planning of an annual Board retreat and other deeper strategy sessions as needed.
- Develop and revise a Board member handbook outlining the responsibilities of the Board and Board members, Board policies, and other relevant information.
- Conduct board education as needed.
- Regularly evaluate the effectiveness of board meetings, and make recommendations for improvement to the chair

and the full board as needed.

- Annually coordinate an evaluation of the full board and individual trustees.
- Create specific, measurable, board-level goals for the year as part of the full board planning process.

Related to the CEO & Superintendent:

- Develop an annual timeline to support and evaluate the CEO, and have this timeline approved by the full board.
- Annually review and revise as necessary the CEO's job description.
- Establish a process for the CEO to develop, share, and receive board approval of a set of annual organizational goals.
- In partnership with the CEO, establish a clear and consistent way for the CEO to report to the full board regularly on progress towards the board-approved annual goals.
- Annually create a survey instrument and process to conduct two structured check-ins between the full board and the CEO. It is anticipated that these will occur in November and March and will involve the CEO completing a self evaluation and surveying the full board.
- Annually implement a comprehensive CEO evaluation that includes a CEO self-evaluation, input from the full board, and anonymous input from the CEO's direct reports.
- Annually prepare or revise the CEO's contract as necessary.
- Annually recommend CEO compensation adjustments to the full board, as appropriate.

CHAIR: Umit Yapanel MEMBERS: Sandra Covarrubias, Salih Dikbas (alternate) STAFF LEAD: Alfredo Rubalcava

FINANCE COMMITTEE

The Finance Committee is commissioned by and responsible to the board and is responsible for working with the CFO to review the upcoming fiscal year budget; presenting budget recommendations; monitor implementation of the approved budget on a regular basis and recommending proposed budget revisions; and recommending appropriate policies for the management of Magnolia's assets, in addition to the following duties:

- ▶ Review critical policies including the Policies and Procedures Manual
- Review Budget vs. Actuals
- Review structure including added ad eliminated positions annually
- Confirm if MPS is adequately Insured and offering competitive/fairly priced benefits
- Review and discuss key variances
- > Knowledge of sources of revenue and related cash flows
- Organizational salary structure each year
- Review and sign off on 990s
- > Have knowledge of all financial requirements per authorizer

CHAIR: Salih Dikbas MEMBERS: Mekan Muhammedov, Umit Yapanel (alternate) STAFF LEAD: CFO (Finance)

FACILITY / AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee is commissioned by the board for the oversight of the integrity of financial statements; the effectiveness of the internal control over financial reporting; the independent registered public accounting firm's qualifications and independence; the performance of the organization's internal audit function and independent registered public accounting firms; and the organization's compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; and the performance of the organization's compliance function.

The purpose of the Facilities Committee is to broadly oversee MPS' physical assets: its land, buildings, and equipment. More specifically, to ensure the adequacy and condition of capital assets, to develop and periodically review policies, to advocate for new structures and rehabilitate or remove older structures, and to ascertain that adequate funding exist for completion of the various projects.

The Audit Committee's primary roles are to:

- Review and recommend independent auditor firm to the board
- Review all observations and recommendations by auditors and responses by management

The Facilities Committee's primary roles are to:

- Determine the adequacy, condition, and use of existing facilities and evaluate the use of space, and the appropriateness of that space to its mission
- Review projections of future facility needs and requirements including the development of long term capital plans
- Review the proposed annual capital budget, including a breakout of all projects
- Approve selection of architects for projects involving new buildings and major additions
- Review project siting, bidding methods, and general program planning for major capital building projects

Communicate with and educate the Board on MPS' physical assets and their condition

* The audit committee meets 1-2 times a year only, therefore it has been merged with the Facility Committee.

CHAIR: Mekan Muhammedov MEMBERS: Diane Gonzalez, Umit Yapanel (alternate) STAFF LEAD: Patrick Ontiveros (Finance) and CFO (Audit)

ACADEMIC COMMITTEE

The committee's main role is to assure that academic excellence is defined, and that the board approves annual goals to attain academic excellence in addition to the following responsibilities:

- Define and continue to refine what academic excellence means for MPS
- Ensure that all board members understand the key charter promises that are made to the community and authorizers
- Work with the CAO to devise clear and consistent ways to measure progress towards stated goals
- Work with the CAO to set annual academic achievement goals
- Work with the CAO to share with the board annual successes, barriers to reaching academic excellence, and strategies to overcome these barriers
- > Arrange for board training on issues related to academic oversight and academic achievement

CHAIR: Diane Gonzalez MEMBERS: Sandra Covarrubias, Salih Dikbas (alternate) STAFF LEAD: Erdinc Acar (Academics)

DEVELOPMENT & STAKEHOLDER COMMITTEE

The Development & Stakeholder Committee derived its roots from the Personnel Committee. The Committee has further expanded its support to the areas of development and communications while also supportinging stakeholder, parent and community engagement and personnel items. It's goal is to nurture people's commitment to Magnolia Public Schools. Key functions to the Committee are:

- Seeking that each board member is active and engaged by soliciting annual gifts, and if appropriate, for a capital gift.
- Cultivate donors to make sure campaigns bring in the maximum amount to support MPS and all ten schools.
- ▶ Review policy and procedures for all fundraising programs and accountability
- Review annual MPS internal stakeholder surveys for students, parents and MPS teachers.
- > Attend community events alongside MPS team members
- ▶ Review the benefit and compensation structure to ensure that MPS retains the best talent.

CHAIR: Sandra Covarrubias MEMBERS: Umit Yapanel, Mekan Muhammedov (alternate) STAFF LEAD: Brenda Lopez (Stakeholder), Suat Acar (Personnel)

BOARD AND COMMITTEE MEETING CALENDARS


Magnolia Public Schools - Nominating/Governance Committee Meeting - Agenda - Thursday November 18, 2021 at 5:00 PM

2019-20 BOARD MEETING CALENDAR



2021-22 BOARD MEETINGS CALENDAR

Magnolia Educational & Research Foundation Magnolia Public Schools

All meetings begin at approximately 6:30 pm - 7:00 pm (PDT). Any changes will be reflected on the MPS website: www.magnoliapublicschools.org

7/08/2021 - Zoom 8/12/2021 - Zoom 9/09/2021 - Zoom 10/14/2021 - Home Office 11/18/2021 - MSA-8 12/09/2021 - MSA-8 12/09/2021 - MSA-2 12/19/2021 - Board Retreat 1/20/2022 - MSA-1 2/10/2022 - MSA-1 2/10/2022 - MSA-3 3/10/2022 - MSA-5 4/07/2022 - MSA-6 5/12/2022 - MSA-6 5/12/2022 - MSA-4 6/09/2022 - Annual Board Meeting - MSA-7 6/23/2022 - Home Office

250 E. 1st Street, Suite 1500, Los Angeles, CA 90012 | www.magnoliapublicschools.org

2021-22 COMMITTEE MEETING CALENDAR



2021-22 MPS Committee Calendar

September	October	<u>November</u>
9/2/21 - Academic @ 6pm 9/9/21 - Stakeholder @ 6pm	10/14 - Finance @ 5:30pm 10/7 - Facilities @ 5:30pm	11/18 - Governance @ 6pm
December	<u>February</u>	<u>March</u>
12/2/21 - Academic @ 6pm 12/9/21 - Stakeholder @ 6pm	2/10 - Finance @ 5:30pm 2/3 - Facilities @ 5:30pm	3/10 - Dev/Stake @ 6pm 3/17 - Governance @ 6pm 3/17 - Academics @ 7pm
<u>April</u>	<u>May</u>	June
4/7 - Finance @ 5:30pm 4/14 - Facilities @ 5:30pm	5/12 - Governance @ 6pm	6/9 - Stakeholder @ 6pm

SAMPLE BOARD MEETING AGENDA



BOARD MEETING AGENDA



Magnolia Public Schools

Regular Board Meeting

Date and Time Thursday June 10, 2021 at 6:00 PM PDT

Location

https://zoom.us/j/96079625045?pwd=emRTWFREUkdsWU1XSTI6SWk2M21tUT09

 Meeting ID: 960 7962 5045
 Passcode: 339607

 One tap mobile: +16699009128,,96079625045# US (San Jose)

All members of the public can participate by calling in using the numbers provided above.

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) and upon request, Magnolia Public Schools may furnish reasonable auxiliary aids and services to qualified individuals with disabilities. Members of the public who need special accommodations or translation are strongly encouraged to contact Magnolia Public Schools at least 24 hours in advance of the Board meeting so assistance can be assured.

Any public records relating to an agenda item for an open session which are distributed to all, or a majority of all, of the Board Members shall be available for public inspection. Magnolia Public Schools values public comment during Board meetings. For members of the public who would like to speak, we have speaker cards to be filled out prior to the beginning of the meeting. For teleconference meetings you can email us your request for public comment. We limit individual speakers to three (3) minutes and speakers with interpreters to six (6) minutes. For any questions regarding this meeting email board@magnoliapublicschools.org or call 213-628-3634 Ext. 100.

Board Members: Mr. Haim Beliak, Chair Dr. Umit Yapanel, Vice-Chair Dr. Salih Dikbas Ms. Diane Gonzalez Ms. Sandra Covarrubias Mr. Mekan Muhammedov

CEO & Superintendent: Mr. Alfredo Rubalcava

Powered by BoardOnTrack

1 of 3

40 of 73

30

Agenda	Purpose	Presenter	Time
I. Opening Items			6:00 PM
Opening Items			
A. Call the Meeting to Order			1 m
B. Record Attendance and Guests			1 m
C. Approval of Agenda	Vote		1 m
D. Public Comments			5 m
E. Announcements from CEO & Superintendent and Board Members			5 m
II. Closed Session			6:13 PM
A. Public Announcement Of Closed Session	FYI		1 m
B. Conference with Legal Counsel - Anticipated Initiation of Litigation ((§ 54956 (b))			
C. Public Employee Performance Evaluation (§ 54957) - Title: CEO & Superintendent			
D. Report Out Of Closed Session	FYI		1 m
III. Consent Items			6:15 PM
A. Approval of 2021-22 MPS Employee Handbook	Vote	D.Hajmeirza	5 m
IV. Action Items			6:20 PM
A. Approval of Contract for John Buck	Vote	P.Ontiveros	7 m
For financial advisory services			
B. Approval of IXL Agreement for all Magnolia Science Academy Schools	Vote	E.Acar	5 m
C. Approval of MSA-Santa Ana Street Signage Installation	Vote	S.Keskinturk	5 m
D. Approval of MSA-Santa Ana Workstation Purchase RFP Award	Vote	S.Keskinturk	5 m
V. Information/Discussion Items			6:42 PM
A. Public Hearing for the Local Control and Accountability Plans (LCAP) for All MPS	Discuss	D.Yilmaz	20 m
B. Public Hearing for the 2021-22 Budgets for All MPS	Discuss	S.Orazov	20 m
C. Creating a Standard of Care for Mental Health and Wellness Across MPS	Discuss	Dr. Lopez	10 m
D. Academic Updates	Discuss	E.Acar	10 m
E. Discussion on MPS Health and Safety Policy and Injury and Illness Prevention Program ("IIPP") COVID-19 Addendum	Discuss	D.Hajmeirza	5 m
VI. Closing Itoms			
VI. Closing Items			7:47 PM

To access MPS Board files log on to BOARDONTRACK.COM

A. Adjourn Meeting

Vote

1 m

HOME OFFICE LEADERSHIP



EXECUTIVE TEAM



ALFREDO RUBALCAVA Chief Executive Officer arubalcava@magnoliapublicschools.org



DR. BRENDA D. LOPEZ Chief External Officer blopez@magnoliapublicschools.org



DAVID YILMAZ Chief Accountability Officer dyilmaz@magnoliapublicschools.org

Alfredo Rubalcava became the Chief Executive Officer of Magnolia Public Schools in 2018. With over one decade of experience in education, Alfredo continues to be passionate about providing a highquality education for students in Southern California. Being one of Magnolia's founding teachers, Alfredo has held various positions within the organization such as teacher, Athletic Director, Dean of Students, Principal, Chief External Officer and now Chief Executive Officer. Alfredo's experiences and expertise are vital in continuing Magnolia's mission and vision of graduating students who contribute to the global community and are educated members of society.

Alfredo prides himself in being able to share his knowledge of education and continues to energize teachers and staff to be champions in education for ALL students. Alfredo holds a bachelor's degree from California State University of Northridge.

Dr. Brenda Lopez is an instructional leader with over 14 years of experience working with students, families, and school leaders. Her passion lies in connecting families to resources and empowering them as the first teachers of their child's education. Dr. Lopez believes in creating sustainable systems and structures that promote a culture of respect, trust, and accountability among families and schools. Dr. Lopez has successfully served the roles of teacher, after-school coordinator, Dean of Academics, Dean of Students, Dean of Culture, and most recently Director of Student Services. She currently serves as the Chief External Officer with Magnolia Public Schools. She earned her doctorate in Educational Leadership with a concentration in Educational Psychology from the University of Southern California. She earned her Master's degree inTeaching of Social Studies from Teachers College, Columbia University and her Bachelor's degree in history with a secondary teaching credential from Mount Saint Mary's University.

As the Chief Accountability Officer of Magnolia Public Schools (MPS), David Yilmaz ensures MPS develops high quality accountability plans, implements the programs described in the charter petitions and complies with all applicable law and regulations. Mr. Yilmaz earned his M.S. in engineering from UC, Irvine and M.A. in school leadership from CSU, Dominguez Hills. He holds CA clear administrative services credential as well as clear single subject teaching credentials in mathematics and science. With 15+ years of teaching and administrative experience at MPS, Mr. Yilmaz strives to ensure MPS implements best practices aligned with our vision, mission, and core values.



ERDINC ACAR Chief Academic Officer eracar@magnoliapublicschools.org

Erdinc Acar is an accomplished and forward-thinking educator with 20+ years of leadership in developing and implementing leadingedge programs and services that align with the mission and vision of educational institutions. He has an outstanding record of improving processes by adapting and applying aspects of STAM/STEAM Education in school systems through comprehensive research, strategic evaluation and effective presentations of best practices in curricula, programs, tools and technologies. He has pioneered establishment of state-of-the-art online learning programs and professional development portals for academic advancement, combined with directing formative assessment and performancebased programs. He has served in top school level administrative positions in Nevada and California for over two decades. He holds the following degrees: Master of Education, Educational Leadership, University of Nevada, Reno; Master of Education, Science Education, Rutgers University, New Brunswick; and Bachelor of Science, Teaching Physics.

Х



X Chief Financial Officer x@magnoliapublicschools.org



PATRICK ONTIVEROS General Counsel & Director of Facilities pontiveros@magnoliapublicschools.org

Patrick Ontiveros is the MPS General Counsel and Director of Facilities, he is responsible for working with architects, developers and consultants on the acquisition, design and construction of new facilities; planning, budgeting and project managing capital and tenant improvements; negotiating and managing leases; and managing relationships with landlords. He has extensive experience in real estate development, project management and corporate counsel. Patrick received his Juris Doctorate from Columbia University School of Law and his Bachelor of Arts in Economics from Yale University.



SUAT ACAR Chief Operations Officer sacar@magnoliapublicschools.org

Mr. Suat Acar started his educational career as a math teacher in 1996 and taught all types of math for 11 years. He became a dean and a principal back in Arizona between 2007 and 2009. In 2009 he moved to Los Angeles CA to become a principal for Magnolia Public Schools. In 2015 he was promoted to being the Regional Director and later on the Chief Operations Officer in 2016. He is still serving California students and families in this position. Mr. Acar has a B.A. in Economics from Bosphorus University and a Master's degree in Education in Educational Leadership with a principal credential from Arizona State University. Mr. Acar is married with three kids.

DIRECTORS



DR. ARTIS CALLAHAM Director of Special Programs

Artis M. Callaham, Ed.D. is has worked with several school districts within the county of Los Angeles for over approximately 30 years inclusive of her service for the last ten in the charter movement. Having earned a Masters in Counseling/Psychology and a Doctorate in Educational Leadership at USC she is well versed in instructional pedagogy and specializes in designing and implementing Universally Designed Instructional Programs. As a licensed educational psychologist, Dr. Callaham has written and published two manuscripts; one being the Study Manual for the Licensed Educational Psychologist's examination for the state of California. She brings to Magnolia Public Schools a wealth of innovative ideas, successful grant writing experience, a collaborative leadership style and a passion for amcallaham@magnoliapublicschools.org empowering at risk youngsters that has proven to be an asset to the profession.

CAFER TURAN Controller cturan@magnoliapublicschools.org

Cafer Turan started his career at Magnolia Public Schools in 2011 as part of the Finance Department serving as an accountant and later as a Senior Financial Analyst. His role mainly focuses on overseeing the financials to ensure compliance with authorizers. Aside from his daily responsibilities, he also played a key role in assisting with the various audits from FCMAT, LAUSD OIG, State Auditors and SSCal that lasted over the course of four years. His early beginning goes back to the University of Pamukkale located in Turkey where he earned his Bachelor of Arts in Public Finance. He also gained several certifications relative to finance and accounting from University of California Riverside, Rutgers University, Harvard Business School. Payroll Practice and Management certification from the University of California and Masters in Professional Accounting from Colorado State University in June 2020. In 2019-20, he took on a larger role within the Finance Dept. as the new MPS Controller.



DERYA HAJMEIRZA Director of Human Resources dhajmeirza@magnoliapublicschools.org

Accomplished HR Professional with extensive experience and consummate achievements. Derya Hajmeirza prides herself on being a proactive change agent that spends time in the employee environment encouraging learning and career development. Throughout her career, Derya has gained valuable experience in all facets of Human Resources including employee/labor relations, organizational design, benefits, mergers & acquisitions, compensation, worker's comp management and health and safety.



ISMAEL SOTO Senior Director of Development and Communications isoto@magnoliapublicschools.org

In his role as Senior Director of Development & Communications, Ismael Soto is charged with leading efforts in the areas of development and communications, while supporting areas in partnership building, enrollment marketing, and parent programs. Mr. Soto also acts as Magnolia's visual and performing arts advisor leading efforts to ensure the A in STEAM education is purposeful and prioritized. He has over twenty-four years of experience leading K-12 public charter schools in California, six of those years proudly serving at Magnolia Public Schools. Mr. Soto graduated from Otis College of Art and Design with a BFA in Communication Arts and has a Master of Arts in Leadership Development from Chapman University.



ISHMAIL OZKAY Director of Data Systems & Analytics iozkay@magnoliapublicschools.org

Ishmail Ozkay has his BA and MS degree in Physics. He started his career and was a founding science teacher at Magnolia Science Academy-San Diego in 2005. After three years of teaching science in all grade levels, he was promoted to Dean of Academics. In 2011, he was promoted to Principal at Magnolia Science Academy 5. He transitioned in 2014 to the Magnolia Public Schools – Home Office and now serves as the Director of Data Systems and Analytics. He oversees, manages and maintains Magnolia's school information system–Infinite Campus and how it integrates between all online portals used by Magnolia teachers/students. Additionally, he supports the Academic Department with student testing and related data & reports: SBAC, MAP, ELPAC, etc.



JASON HERNANDEZ Director of Student Services jhernandez@magnoliapublicschools.org

Jason Hernandez is the Director of Student Services for Magnolia Public School (MPS). Jason Hernandez main responsibility is to represent and advocate for the student body by ensuring support structures and networks that enhance success for all students. Mr. Hernandez earned his B.S. in History and Single Subject Teaching Credential from Cal State Long Beach, and M.A. in school leadership and administrative service credential from Cal State Northridge. Mr. Hernandez brings 17+ years of innovative teaching and administrative leadership experience that has contributed to high quality learning experience and academic success for students and staff members.



KATIE MANN Director of EL and ELA Programs kmann@magnoliapublicschools.org

Katie Mann started her career at Magnolia Public Schools in 2010 as a founding ELA teacher at Magnolia Science Academy-Bell. Throughout her tenure as a teacher, Katie has taught 6th and 8th grade ELA, Power English, supported ELD classes, and served as an English Department Chair. During the Fall of 2015, Katie transitioned into the role of Instructional Coach, where she supported teachers in all aspects of instruction. Katie joined the MPS home office team in 2019, where she currently serves as the ELA and EL Program Coordinator. Before beginning her career in education, Katie attended the University of California, Irvine, where she earned a Bachelor of Arts in English, with a minor in Education, a Master of Arts in Teaching, and a California Clear Single-Subject Credential.



DR. OMAR F. POLAT Director of State and Federal Programs ofpolat@magnoliapublicschools.org

Dr. Omar F. Polat is an instructional leader with over 19 years of experience working with students, families, and school leaders. He joined MPS as the principal of MSA 4 campus and successfully served that role for 2 years. For the last 8 years, Dr. Polat served various administrative positions in our flagship school, MSA 1. He currently serves as the Director of State and Federal Programs at the home office. He has provided scientific leadership, direction to the planning, development, implementation, and evaluation of many academic initiatives during his time at Magnolia Public Schools. Dr. Polat is also an Ed-Tech enthusiast as his Ph.D. has the specialization of Educational Technology.



Rasul Monoshev received a degree in Computer Engineering and has worked as a System Administrator. Currently, Rasul is the IT Director at Magnolia Public Schools and caters to all of Magnolia Public Schools technology needs. He received his Masters in Software Engineering at California State University of Fullerton.

RASUL MONOSHEV IT Director rmonoshev@magnoliapublicschools.org



TRACI LEWIN Director of Math Programs tlewin@magnoliapublicschools.org

Traci Lewin started her career with Magnolia Public Schools in September 2011 as a Math Teacher at Magnolia Science Academy-Bell. In Spring of 2015, Traci transitioned into the role of Dean of Academics at MSA-Bell, where she supported the academic program of the school. In August of 2017, she joined the Magnolia Public Schools Home Office Support Team to further develop and align the math programs across the organization and provide support to school sites through coaching and mentoring. Before entering the education world, Traci worked in the Human Resources, Payroll, and Financial fields. She holds a Bachelor of Science Degree in Business Administration from the University of Phoenix and a Master of Arts in Education from Claremont Graduate University. Professional Licenses held include: California Clear Single-Subject Teaching Credential, Foundationallevel Mathematics & Introductory Business, and California Preliminary Administrative Services Credential.

STAFF



BARBARA TORRES HR Administrator btorres@magnoliapublicschools.org

Barbara Torres is the HR Administrator at MPS and has been with the organization since 2013. She holds a Masters degree in Public Administration from CSULA and is an active advocate for East Los Angeles Women's Center. At MPS, she supports new hire on boarding and recruitment efforts.



BROCK ATAR Senior Financial Analyst batar@magnoliapublicschools.org

HARUN CIFTCI Senior Financial Analyst hciftci@magnoliapublicschools.org



Х



JENNIFER HOOK Assistant Executive Office Manager jwade@magnoliapublicschools.org

Brock Atar has been working for Magnolia since 2010. He started his career as a Payroll and Benefits Specialist at Magnolia's home office. He took various roles within the Finance department and became a Payroll Manager/Financial Analyst in 2020. Brock supports ten MPS schools and runs a payroll around of 400 employees. Brock Atar has a Bachelor of Science in Statistics with a minor in Accounting. In addition to that, Brock completed his MBA degree in 2019.

Jennifer Hook started her journey with Magnolia Public Schools in 2008 as an eighth grade student at Magnolia Science Academy-1. After graduating from MSA-1 in 2010 she went on to Magnolia Science Academy-7 as an Office Clerk and after school coach. After departing in 2016, Jennifer returned to the MPS family in the winter of 2018 where she now serves as the Assistant Executive Office Manager. Jennifer obtained her Bachelor degree from California State University-Northridge in Tourism, Hospitality, and Recreation Management.



JENNIFER LARA Executive Assistant & Board Secretary jlara@magnoliapublicschools.org

Jennifer Lara serves as the Executive Assistant & Board Secretary at Magnolia Public Schools. In her role she assists the C level staff in different administrative and organizational capacities. In addition, she oversees, organizes and facilitates board and committee meetings and ensures there is governance compliance in all aspects. She received her Bachelor's degree in Psychology in 2018 from the University of California, Irvine. She is involved in the UCI Alumni Association and acts as a mentor to students from the UCI Student Alumni Association.



JENNY OBUCHI Academic Assistant & Document Control Coordinator jobuchi@magnoliapublicschools.org

Jenny Obuchi is the Academic Assistant at the Home Office in Downtown Los Angeles, where she assists the Chief Academic Officer and supports members of the academic team. She recently graduated with her Master's degree in Industrial and Organizational Psychology from The Chicago School of Professional Psychology. She started her path in education at a private elementary school in the heart of Los Angeles and, after 12 years of service, left to join Magnolia Public Schools in May 2015.



LESIA NWANKWO Accounts Payable & Vendor Relations Inwankwo@magnoliapublicschools.org

Lesia Nwankwo has been with Magnolia Public Schools for 4 years, she is a dynamic, upbeat, and efficient accounting professional. Before joining the Magnolia family, she spent 5 years working as a Finance reporting Donor Relations Manager at Opportunity Village, a Not-For Profit in Las Vegas, Nevada. In addition to this experience, she worked 7 years with Schools, and 3 Years with Long Beach Unified School District in the Accounting/Finance Team.



LYDIETT WOODS Executive Office Manager Iwoods@magnoliapublicschools.org



MURAT AKBAS Senior Human Resources Manager makbas@magnoliapublicschools.org

Lydiett Woods joined Magnolia Public Schools with several years experience in education serving at-risk-youth and started her career at Magnolia Public Schools in 2009 as an office manager at Magnolia Science Academy-2. The following year Lydiett was promoted to the first-ever Executive Office Manager at MPS, supporting four Los Angeles County Magnolia schools. After 2 years in her new position 13 Magnolia Academies were also assigned to her supervision spanning from San Diego to Santa Clara in Northern California. Over the course of Lydiett's time with MPS she has developed new systems and procedures to ensure compliance and successful high stakes reporting to State, Federal and local authorizing agencies. As the MPS Executive Office Manager Lydiett continues to support office managers, school leaders and administrators. Lydiett began her career in education while gaining her Bachelors degree from Cal State University at Northridge and has received multiple awards including Certificate of Recognition from the City of Los Angeles.

Murat Akbas started his career as a chemistry teacher and worked in various administrative positions in middle and high schools throughout the United States and abroad. After 15 plus years of HR management experience, he joined the Magnolia Public Schools team in July 2018 as an HR Administrator. Now, he is the Senior HR Manager of MPS with a main focus of HR system management, employee relations, HR reportings, teaching credentials, CALSAAS and HR school compliance issues (TB, credentials, mandatory trainings).



MUSTAFA SAHIN Facilities Project Manager msahin@magnoliapublicschools.org

I joined MPS in 2006 as an ESL/SPED Teacher at MSA1. During my tenure at MPS, I have worn different hats in different locations. I worked 3 years at MSA2 as a Dean, 2 years at MSA4 as a Principal, 10 years at MSA1 as a Principal.I received my Master Degree and Admin Credential from California State University of Dominguez Hills. I currently live in Reseda. When I am not keeping busy with work, you can find me biking and hiking.



THALIA VELAZQUEZ Communications & Charter Renewal Manager tvelazquez@magnoliapublicschools.org

Thalia currently serves as the Communications & Charter Renewal Manager at Magnolia Public Schools. In her role, she manages the renewal process, social media, and org-wide graphic design, amongst other duties. She holds a Bachelors in Communications and minor in Graphic Design from Azusa Pacific University and most recently received her certificate in Strategic Branding and Public Relations from UCLA Extension and is currently completing the two additional certificate programs: Project Management and Marketing with a concentration in Digital Marketing. Additionally, in 2017, Thalia completed the Advanced Social Media Strategy certificate program from Hootsuite and Syracuse University. She also brings a unique student perspective as an alumna from Magnolia Science Academy-1, the flagship campus for Magnolia Public Schools.



WILLIAM GRAY College and Career Readiness Program and TOSA Coordinator wgray@magnoliapublicschools.org

William Gray is excited to return to the Magnolia Family as its first College and Career Readiness Program and TOSA Coordinator. He started his career in education as a founding teacher at Magnolia Science Academy-8 Bell before joining its administrative team and eventually becoming Principal. He has also been an administrator at our MSA-3 Carson campus. He has held numerous administrative roles at other organizations in Los Angeles and Orange County, with a common theme of designing & leading educational programs that serve at-risk students. Will holds Bachelor's and Master's degrees from the University of California Irvine in History and Teaching respectively. He is currently pursuing his doctorate in Educational Leadership with a focus on high-poverty schools that are successfully closing the achievement gap.

BOARD POLICIES

MPS BOARD OF DIRECTORS BYLAWS

AMENDED AND RESTATED BYLAWS OF MAGNOLIA EDUCATIONAL & RESEARCH FOUNDATION

(A California Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation)

AND RULES

NAME

Sections

NAME: The name of this corporation is Magonlia Educational & Research Frundation.

ARTICLE II PRINCIPAL OFFICE OF THE CORPORATION

Section 1 PRINCIPAL UPPICE OF TERODROPRATION. The principal office for the transaction of the ortivities and affairs of this corporation is agui East to Street, Suite 1900, Los Angeles, scene California. The Board of Directors may change the location of the prancipal office. Any such change of location must be moved by the Secretary on these bylows opposite this Section; alternatively, this Section may be amended to state the new location.

Section 2 LTDEER OFFICES OF THE CORFORATION. The Board of Directors may at my time establish branch on subordinate offices at any place or places where this conjugation is qualified to conduct its activities.

ARTICLETH

GENERAL AND SPECIFIC PURPOSES; LIMITATIONS

Section 1 CENERAL AND SPECIFIC PURPOSES. The purposes of this corporation are to provide community support in educational and research areas, which include, but are not havited to the following: managing, operating, goaling, directing, and procuring policy charter achieves contributing activities research at X-12 schools and colleges to identify and implement successful education practices; promoting and discovering the research modules in scientific areas with applied and practicable methods to ground prospective where six; coordinating interactional conferences/competitions in various fields of academic study. Also in the context of these purposes, for Corporation shall not, except to an insubstantial degree, engage in any other activities or exercise of power that do not further the purposes of the Corporation.

The Corporation shall not carry on any other activities not permitted to be considered by (a) a corporation exceept from federal means tag under section gor(c)(g) of the Internal Revenue Code, or the corresponding section of any future factors in which are deductible under section (70(c)(2) of the Internal Revenue Code, or the corresponding section of any future factors to which are deductible under section (70(c)(2) of the Internal Revenue Code, or the corresponding section of any future factors to which are deductible under section (70(c)(2) of the Internal Revenue Code, or the corresponding section of any future factors to which are deductible under section (70(c)(2) of the Internal Revenue Code, or the corresponding section of any future factors to which are deductible under section (70(c)(2) of the Internal Revenue Code, or the corresponding section of any future factors to which are deductible under section (70(c)(2) of the Internal Revenue Code, or the corresponding section of any future factors to which are deductible under section (70(c)(2) of the Internal Revenue Code, or the corresponding section of any future factors to which are deductible under section (70(c)(2) of the Internal Revenue Code, or the corresponding section of any future factors (8) and for earlying on of proyaganda, or otherwise attempting to indinence legislation, and the corporation shall not participate in, or intervene in (influence) the publishing or distributing of statements) any political campaign on behall of ar in opposition to any candidate for public office.

Amonded and Restated Bylaws of Magnolia Educational & Research Foundation Page 1 of 13 Adopted: 5/16/08 Amended: 5/19/12, 4/13/13, 12/12/13, 0/9/15, 2/06/15, 2/06/15, 2/06/16, 10/26/16, 10/3/16, 10/13/38/9/22/19

44

54 of 73

ARTICLE IV CONSTRUCTION AND DEFINITIONS

Section 1 ODNITRUCTION AND DEFINITIONS. Unless the context indicates otherwise, the general pravisions, rules of each mercon and definitions to the Cohomia Net profit Corporation Law shall govern the construction of these laylaws. Without limiting the generality of the periodicg semence, the networking gender includes the formining and neuter, the singular includes the plotal, and the plotal and the singular and the term "person" includes both a legal entity and a natural person.

ARTICLE V DEDICATION OF ASSETS

Section 3. DEDICATION OF ASNETS – This corporation's assets are intervalibly dedicated to public hearfs proposes. No part of the net earnings, properties, at assets of the corporation, on dissolution or otherwise, shall intro-to the benefit of any private person or individual, or to any director or officer of the corporations. On liquitation or dissolution, all properties and assets remaining after payment, or provision for poyneer), of all debts, liabilities and all charter obligations of the corporation that dissolution of the entropy shall be described to a nonprofit fund, foundation, or corporation that is explained, and operated exclusively for the public and/or chantable purposes of managing, operating, golding, directing, promuting, and/or supporting action to the California public decription shall be described to a work shall be serve students in grades K-re and then has established to complete status order Internal Revenue Code section gon(c)(g)

ARTICLE VI CORPORATIONS WETHOUT MEMIRERS

Section 1 CORPORATIONS WILLIOUL MEMBERS. This corporation shall have no voting mundlers within the meaning of the Nonportal Corporation Law.

ARDCLE VI BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Sector 4. GENERAL POWERS. Subject to the provisions and limitations of the California Nopposit Public Branch Corporation Law and any other applicable laws, and subject to any funitations of the articles of incurporation on bylows, the corporation Law and affairs shall be managed, and all corporate powers shall be recreased, by extraction on bylows, the corporation's activities and affairs shall be managed, and all corporate powers shall be recreased, by extraction the direction of the Board of Directors ("Board"). The Board and delegate the management of the corporation's activities to any person(s), correspondent company or committees, however composed, provided that the activities and affairs of the surporation shall be managed and all corporate powers shall be received under the ultimate direction of the Board.

Section 2. SPECIFIC POWERS: Without pay vive to the general powers set forth in Section 1 of these hybres, but subject to the same implations, the Board of Directors shall have the power to

6. Appoint and remove, at the pleasure of the lloard of Exectors, all corporate officers, agents, and

Amuniced and Resized Bylaws of Singpolia Educational & Research Singulation Page 2 of 13 Adopted: 6/16/08 Amended: 4/39/12, 4/12/33, 12/12/33, 3/9/25, 2/16/15, 8/11/36, 10/26/16, 10/3/36, 19/12/38.9/22/39 employees prescribe powers and duties for these as are consistent with the law. The articles of accorporation, and these bytews, fix their componisation, and require from them securely (or fashful service.

- b. Obsauge the principal offset or the principal jugitors office to California from one location to arother; cause the cosporation to be qualified to conduct its artivities in any other state, territory, dependency, or country: conduct its activities in coloriside California: and designate a place in California for heiring any meeting of members.
- c. ISorrow morey and incur indebteshess on the corporation's behalf and sacar to be specified and delivered for the corporation's purposes, in the corporate name, promissory notes, bonds, debetaures, deeds of tract, montgages, pledges, hypothecations, and other conferences of debt and securities.
- Adopt and use a corporate seal, prescribe the forms of membership certoficates, studiabler the forms of the seal and certoficates.

Section 3. DESIGNATED DIRECTORS. The number of directors shall be no less than three (a) and so more than eleven (a), unless changed by an endingers to these bylaws. The exact remoters of downtoes shall be fixed within these lengts by a Resolution of the Baard. All directors shall be designated by the existing Baard of Directors.

The Board of Directors commits to designating at least one (1) director who revides an each county where this corporation operates a charter school. The Board of Directors sholl since to permut directors representing papents and the charter school communities, from diverse professional and charter backgrounds and communities from diverse professional and charter backgrounds and communities from diverse professional and charter backgrounds and communities designating of least one (1) charter representing papents an all targets.

Section 4. RESTRICTION ON EMPLIYEE DIRECTORS. No current employees of the corporation may serve on the Board of Directory.

Section 5. DIRECTORS' TERMS. Each director shall hold office for five (5) years and matil a successor director has here designated and qualified. The terms of directors shall be staggered as determined by the Board. Staggering has been accomplished by the Board appointing directors on different dates. Staggering shall be maintained as directors shall be approximated to fill vacuum scans or the expansion of each staggered term.

Section 6. NOMINATIONS HY COMMITTEEL. The Charman of the Board of Directors or, if cone, the President will appoint a committee to occurate qualified candidates for designation to the Board of Directors at least therty: (30) days before the date of the designation of directors. The non-cating committee shall roke its report at least seven (7) days before the date of the designation of directors. The non-cating committee shall roke its report at least seven (7) days before the date of the designation of directors. The non-cating committee shall roke its report at least seven (7) days before the date of the designation of directors. The non-cating committee shall roke its report at least seven (7) days before the date of the designation of directors (7) days before the date of the designation of its contractor of the non-cating reports) by Directors, whet we full conditions contractively end to the North of the non-cating reports) by Directors, whet we full conditions of the optimized by non-toother. Any member of the non-cating reports of the non-cating committee to the Roard for designation.

Section 7. USE OF CORPORATE FUNDS TO SUPPORT NOMINEE. If more people have been nominated for director than can be designated, no comparation fonds may be expended to support a powerser.

Section 8. EVENTS CAUSING VACANCIES ON BOARD. A vacances or vacances on the Board of Directors shall occur in the event of (a) the death, resignation, or removal of any director; (h) the declaration by resolution

Amended and Restated Bylaws of Magnolia Educational & Research Foundations Progr 3 of 14 Adopted: 6/16/08 Amended: 4/19/12.4/11/33.12/12/131.1/9/15.9/16/13.8/11/26.20/26/08.11/3/16. 10/12/28.9/22:19 of the Board of Directors of a varancy in the office of a director who has been convicted of a felory, declared of unsailed could by a rouri order, or found by final order or judgment of any court to have breached a duty under California Nonprofit Public Berkfit Corporation flow, Chapter 2. Article (1) (r) the increase of the authorized noreher of directors, and (d) the failure of the members (at any meeting of members of which any director or directors are to be elected, to elect the number of directors required to be elected at such meeting.

Section 9. RESIGNATION OF DURINGORS. Except as provided below, any director may resign by giving written notice to the Chnirmon of the Board, if any, or to the President, or the Secretary, or to the Board. The resignation shall be effective when the notice is given unless the notice specifies a later time for the resignation to become effective. It a director's resignation is effective at a later time, the Board of Directors in an effect a successor to take office as of the date when the resignation becomes effective.

Section 10. DIRECTOR MAY NOT RESENTER NO DIRECTOR REMAINS. Except on nature to the California Altorizy General, no director may research the corporation worklibe left without a duly elected director or directors.

Section 11. REMOVAL OF DIRECTORS. Any director may be removed, with or without conse, by a simple majority of directors then in office at a special meeting called for that purpose, or as a regular meeting, provided that notice of that meeting and of the removal questions are given in compliance with the provisions of the Ralph M Brave. Act. (Chapter 9 (commencing with Section 54950) of Division 2 of Table 5 of the Government Codek. Any vacancy tassed by the removal of a director shall be filled as provided in Section 12.

Section 12. VACANCHOS FILLED BY BOARD. Vacancies on the Board of Directors may be filled by approval of the Board of Directors or, if the number of directors then in office at a majority of the directors then in office, (b) the affirmative vote of a majority of the directors then in office at a meeting held according to matter or waivers of network complying with Corporations Code Section 5210, or (c) a sole remaining director.

Section 13. NO VACANCY ON REDUCTION OF NUMBER OF DIRECTORS. Any reduction of the authorized number of directors shall not result in any directors bring removed before his or her term of office expires.

Section (4. QUORUM: A majority of the directors then motified shall constitute a quorum. If a quarum is present, the affirmative vote of the majority of the directors at the meeting shall be a decision of the Board of Directors. Should there be fever than a majority of the directors present at any meeting, the meeting shall be adjourned. A majority of the directors present at any meeting to another time and place. Directors may not vote by proof. The vote or abstention of each board member present for each action taken shall be publicly reported.

Section 15. COMPENSATION AND REIMBURSEMENT. Directors shall serve without compensation except that they shall be allowed reasonable advancement or reimbursenents of actual reasonable expenses cacuraed in carrying out his or her duties. Directors shall not otherwise be compressed.

Attended and Reslated B Sams of Magnolia Educational & Research Foundation Page 4 of 13 Adopted: 6/16/08 Amended: 4/10/12, 4/11/13, 12/12/13, 1/9/15, 2/16/15, 8/11/16, 10/25/16, 11/3/16, 20/11/18/9/22/19 Section 16. CREATION AND POWERS OF COMMITTEES. The Board, by resolution adopted by a augusty of the directors then in office, may create one or more committees, each consisting of two or more directors and no one who is not a director, to serve at the pleasure of the Board. Appointments to committees of the Board of Directors shall be by majority vate of the authorized number of directors. The Board of Directors may appoint one or none directors as alternate members of any such committee, who may replace any absent member at any meeting. Any such committee shall have all the authority of the Board, to the essent provided to the Board of Directors' resolution, except that committee may:

- Take any final action on any matter that, under the California Nonpretit Public Beself: Corporation Law, also requires approval of the members or approval of a majority of all members;
- b. Fill vacancies on the Board of Directors of any compristee of the Board;
- Assend or repeak hytows or adopt new hytows;
- d. Amend or repeal any resolution of the Board of Directors that by its express terms is not so amendable or subject to repeal:
- Create any other compositors of the Board of Directory or appeart the members of committees of the Board; or
- E. Expend corporate funds to support a nominer for director if more people have been nominated for director than can be elected.

Section 17. MENTINGS AND ACTION OF COMMITTEES. Meetings and actions of committees of the Board of Directors shall be governed by, held, and token under the provisions of toese hylaves concerning meetings, other Board of Directors' actions, and the Brown Act, are puthat the time for general meetings of such committees and the rolling of special meetings of such committees may be set either by Board of Directors' resolution or, if none, by resolution of the committee. Minutes of each meeting shall be kept and shall be filed with the corporate records. The Board of Directors may adopt rules for the governance of any committee as long as the roles are consistent with these bylaves. If the Board of Directors has not adopted rules, the committee may do so.

Section (8. NON-LIABILITY OF DIRECTORS. No director shall be personally liable for the debts, lipbilities, or other obligations of this corporation.

Section 19. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS GOVERNING STUDENT RECORDS. The Charter School and the Board of Directors shall comply with all applieable provisions of the Family Education Rights Privacy Act ("FERPA") as set forth in Title 20 of the United States Code Section 123 ag and attendant regulations as they may be attended from time to time.

Section 20. COMPLIANCE WITH CONFLICTS OF INTEREST LAWS. The corporation shall comply with applicable conclict of apprest laws, including the Political Reform Act of 1974 (Chapter 1 (commencing with Section 81000) of Tirle 9 of the Government Code) and Govt. Code 5 1090 <u>15 209</u>.

Amended and Restated Bylaws of Magnolas Educational & Research Foundation Page 5 of 13 Adapted: 6/16/08 Amended: 4/19/12, 4/11/13, 12/12/13, 1/9/15, 2/16/15, 8/11/16, 10/26/16, 11/3/16, 10/11/18/9/22/19

ARTICLES VIII MEETINGS

Section 1. PLACE OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETINGS. The Board of Directors will designate that a meetings be held in the county in which the greatest number of pupils corrolled in Magnetic Public Seconds (excle whech exin compliance with the Relph M. Brown Act and Education Code Section 47604, t/(c)(4)(A). The Board of Directors will establish a two-way teleconference location at each of the corporation's charter, school sites and each resource center in compliance with the Relph M. Brown Act and Education Code Section 47604, t/(c)(4)(B).

All meetings of the Board of Derectors shall be called, held and conducted in accordance with the terms and previous of the Ralph M. Brown Act. California Government Code Sections 54950, <u>d 200</u>, in such element on he avoidfied by subsequent legislation

Section 2. MEETINGS: ANNUAL MEETINGS. All matchings of the Board of Directors and its committees shall be called, noticed, and held in compliance with the provisions of the Ralph M. Brown Act. ("Brown Art") (Chapter 9 (commencency with Section 54950) of Division 2 of Tile 5 of the Coverament Code).

The Board of Directors shall need annually for the purpose of organization, appointment of officers, and the transmission of such other basiness as may properly be brought before the faceting. This meeting shall be held at a tiple, date, and place as may be specified and ontered by resolution of the Board of Directors.

Section 3. REGULAR MEETINGS. Regular meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held on the second Thursday of each month, onless the second Thursday of the month should fail on a legal holday in which event the regular meeting shall be held at the same boar and place on the next behaviors day following the legal holday. At least 72 hours before a regular meeting, the Board of Directors, or its designee, shall post an agenda containing a brief general description of each item of business to be trac sacted or discussed at the meeting.

Section 4 SPECIAL MEETINGS Special meetings of the Board of Directors far any purpose may be collect at any time by the Chairman of the Board of Directors, if there is such an affiner or a majority of the Board of Directors. If a Chairman of the Board has not been elected, then the President is authorized to call a special atecting in place of the Chairman of the Board. The party colling a special meeting shall determine the place, date, and tune thereof.

Section 5. NOTICE OF SPECIAL MEETINGS. In accordance with the Brown Act, special meetings of the Board of Directors may be held only after twenty-four (24) hours' notice is given to each director and to the public through the possing of an agenda. Pursuant to the Brown Act, the Board of Directors shell adhere to the following notice requirements for special needings:

2. Any such notice shall be addressed or debyered to each director of the director's address as it is shown on the remarks of the corporation, or as may have been given to the corporation by the director for purposes of potice, or, if an address is not shawn on the corporation's records or is not readaboscenta mable, at the place at which the meetings of the Baned of Directors are regularly held.

Amended and Restored Bylows of Magnoba Educational & Research Roundation Page 6 of 13 Adopted 6/16/06 Amended: 4/19/12, 4/11/13, 12/12/13, 1/9/15, 2/16/15, 6/11/16, 10/26/16, 11/3/16, 10/11/18/9/22119

- b. Notice by mail shall be deemed received at the time a properly addressed written notice is deposited in the United States mail, pastage propaid. Any other written notice shall be deemed received at the time is is personally delivered to the meighest or is delivered to a common carrier for transmission, or is actually transmitted by the person giving the notice by electronic means to the recipient. Oral notice shall be deemed received at the time it is communicated, so person or by telephone or wireless. In the recipient or to a person at the office of the recipient whom the person giving the notice bas reason to believe will promptly communicate it to the receiver.
- r. The notice of special meeting shall state the time of the meeting, and the place of the place is other than the principal offices of the corporation, and the general nature of the bosiness proposed to be transacted at the nateting. No basiness, other than the business the general nature of which was set forth in the notice of the meeting, may be transacted at a special meeting.

Section 6. TELECONFERENCE MEETINGS. Members of the Board of Directors may participate an teleconference meetings so long as all of the following requirements in the Brown Art are complied with:

- a. All punisionant, a quorum of the members of the Board of Directors shall participate in the teleconference meeting from locations within the boundaries of the concentrant which the greatest number of populationariled in the charter schools managed by the corporation reside.
- All votes taken during a teleconference areating shall be by foll call;
- If the Board of Directors cleets to use teleconferencing, it shall post agendas at all teleconference locations with each teleconference location being identified in the notice and agenda of the meeting;
- d All locations where a member of the Board of Directors participates in a meeting vio teleconference must be fully accessible to members of the public and shall be listed on the agenda;
- Members of the public must be able to hear what is said during the meeting and shall be provided with an opportunity to orderess the Board of Directors directly at each teleconference location; and
- f. The agenda shall judicate that members of the public attending a meeting conducted van teleconference need not give their name when entering the conference call.

Section 2. ADJOURNMENT. A majority of the directors present, whether or not a morum is present, may adjoin a my loard of Directors meeting to another time or place. If a meeting is adjourned for more than twentyfour (24) hours, notice of such adjournment to another time or place shall be given, prior to the time schedule for the ronteneztion of the meeting, to the directors who were not present at the time of the adjournment, and to the public in the manner presented by any applicable public open meeting law.

Page 7 of 13

⁽This means that exercises of the Board of Dependence who choose in utilize their bornes or offices as teleconference locations must open choose locations to the public and accommodate any members of the public who was tracticed the enceting at that location.
The Brown Ayt prohibits requiring conclusion of the public to provide their transports as a condition of attendance at the meeting.

ARTICLE X OFFICERS OF THE CORPORATION

Section 1. OFFICES (15:11). The officers of this corporation shall be a President, a Secretary, and Chief Financial Officer, who shall be known as the 'Treasurer." The corporation, at the Board's directjop, page also been a Chairman of the Board, one or more Vice-Presidents, one on more assistant secretaries, one or more assistant treasurers, and such other officers as may be appointed upder Article X Section 4, of these bylaws.

Section 2 DUPILCATION OF OFFICE SIGLDERS. Any purpher of offices may be held by the same person, except that neither the Secretary nor the Treaspret may serve concorrectly as either the President or the Chairman of the Board.

Section 3. ELECTION OF DEFECERS. The officers of this corporation shall be chosen annually by the Board of Directors and shall serve at the pleasure of the Board.

Section 4 APPOINTMENT OF OTHER OFITCERS. The Board of Directors may appoint and authorizathe Chairman of the Board, the President, or another officer to appoint any other officers that the corporation may require Each appointed officer shall have the title and authority, hold office for the period, and perform the duties specified in the bylaws or established by the Board.

Section 5. REMOVALOF OFFICERS. Without projudice to the rights of any officer under an employment contract, the Board of Directors may remove any officer with or without cause.

Section 6. RESIGNATION OF OFFICERS. Any officer may resign at any time by giving written parties to the Board. The resignation shall take effect on the date the notice is previved or at any intervine specified in the notice. Unless otherwise specified at the unifier, the resignation peed pat be accepted to be effective. Any resignation shall be without projudice to any rights of the corporation under any contrast to which the officer is a party.

Section 7. VACANCES IN OFFICE. A variancy in any office locators of death, resignation, removal, disqualification, or any other cause shall be filled in the manner prescribed in these bylaws for normal appointment to that office, provided inweiver, that vacancies need not be filled on an annual basis.

Section 8. CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD. If a Chairman of the Board of Directors is elected, he or she shall preside at the Board of Directors' nonlings and shall exercise and perform such other powers and duties as the Board of Directors shall also be the chief executive officer and shall have the powers and duties of the President of the corporation set forth in these belows. If a Chairman of the Board of Directors shall also be the chief executive officer and shall have the powers and duties of the President of the corporation set forth in these belows. If a Chairman of the Board of Directors is elected, here shall also be a Vice-Chairman of the Board of Directors. In the ubserve of the Chairman, the Vice-Chairman shall preside at Board of Directors meetings and shall exercise and perform such other powers and duties as the Directors may assign from time to time.

Section 9. PRESIDENT. Subject to such supervisory powers as the Roard of Directors may give to the Chairman of the Board, it any, and subject to the control of the Roard, the Possident Suff he the general manager of the

Amended and Restated Bylaws of Magnolia Educational & Research Foundation Page 8 of 13 Adopted: 5/10/08 Amended: 4/19/12, 4/11/13, 52/12/13, 1/9/15, 2/16/55, 8/11/16, 50/26/16, 11/3/16, 10/51/18/9/22/19 comportation and shall supervise, divoct, and control the comportation's activities, affairs, and officers as fully described in any applicable encloser resourcest, or job specification. The President shall preside at all Board of Directors' meetings. The President shall have such other powers and duties as the Board of Fibrertors or the bylaws may require.

Section 10. VICE PRESIDENTS. If the President is absend or disabled, the Vice-Presidents, if any, in order of their rank as fixed by the Board, or, if not ranked, a Vice-President designated by the Board, shall perform all derive of the President. When so acting, a Vice-President shall have all howers of and be subject to all restrictions on the President. The Vice-Presidents shall have such other powers and perform such other dories to the Board of Directors or the hybrid away require

Section 12. SECRETARY. The Secretary shall keep or cause to be kept, at the corporation's principal office or such other place as the Board of Directors may direct, a book of minutes of all meetings, proceedings, and actions of the Board and of commutees of the Board. The minutes of meetings shall include the time and place that the nucling was beld; whether the meeting was annual, regular, or special and, if special, how nutborized: the sector given; and the tweeters of the directors present at Board of Directors and committee meetings.

The Secretary shall keep or cause to be kept at the proprioal California office, a copy of the acticles of incorporation and by lows, as a mended to date.

The Secretary shall give, or cause to be given, notice of all meetings of the Board and of committees of the Board of Diportors (but these by low require to be given. The Secretary shall keep the corporate scal, if any, in safe custody and shall have such other powers and perform such other duties as the Board of Directors or the hybrids may require.

Section 12. TREASURER. The Treasurer shall keep and maintain, or rates to be lept and multialized, adequate and correct books and account soft be corporation's projectics and transactions. The Treasurer shall send or cause to be given to directors such financial statements and reports as are required to be given by law, by these by laws, or by the Jogand. The books of account shall be open to inspection by any dimenorat all consumable times.

The Treasurer shall (a) deposit, or cause to be deposited, all money and other valuables in the name and to the credit of the corporation with such depositories as the Board of Directors may designate; (ii) disburse the corporation's funds as the Board of Directors may order; (c) render to the President, Chainnan of the Board, if any, and the Board, when requested, an account of all transactions as Trensurer and of the formerial condition of the corporation: and (d) have such other provers and perform such other duties as the Board of the bylaws may require.

If required by the Board, the Treasurer shall give the corporation a bond in the amount and with the votery or surctice specified by the Board of Directors for faithful performance of the duties of the office and for restoration to the corporation of all of its books, papers, which exists, money, and other property of every kind in the possession or under the content of the Treasurer on bis or bord earth, respiration, retirement, or money from affice.

Section 13. VICE-CITATRMEN. One Vice-Chairman of the Board of Directors will be assigned to each county in which a charter scheol operated by the corporation is facated.

Apended and Restated Bylaws of Magaolia Educational & Research Foundation Page 9 of 13 Adopted: 6/16/08 Amended: 4/39/12, 4/31/33, 12/32/13, 1/9/15, 2/16/35, 8/11/16, 10/27/16, 12/3/36, 10/11/18/9/22/19

ARTICLE XI CONTRACTS WITH DIRECTORS

Section 1. CONTRACTS WTTP DRECTORS. In compliance with Government Code Section 2090 <u>a</u> area, the corporation shall not enterint on contract or transaction in which a director directly or indirectly has a material financial que test from any other corporation, firm, a sociation, or other entry in which one or more of the corporation's directors are directors and have a material financial one rest).

ARTICLE XII

CONTRACTS WITH NON-DIRECTOR DESIGNATED EMPLOYEES.

Section 1. CONTRACTS WITH NON-DIRECTOR DESIGNATED EMPLOYEES. The corporation shall not writer and a contract or transaction in which a non-director designated employee (e.g., officers and other key decision-making employees) directly or indirectly has a material financial interest upless all of the regularements in the corporation's Conflict of Interest Code and applicable inw have been fulfilled.

Section 2. ACAINST MEPOTISM. If a member of an officer's or employee's immediate family is to be hired to work in a position directly subordinate or supervisory to the officer or employee, that fact should be disclosed in advance to the Board of Directors so that a determination can be made whether to permit an exception to the normal prohabition against nepotism.

ARTICLE XIII LOANS TO DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS

Section 1 LOANS TO DERECTORS AND OFFICERS. This exponetion shall not lettel any money or property to or guarantee the obligation of any director or officer without the approval of the California Attorney Ceneral; provided, however, that the corporation may advance money to a director or officer of the corporation for expenses reasonably anticipated to be incurred in the performance of his or her duties of that director or officer would be entitled to priphersement for such expenses of the corporation.

ARTICLE XIV INDEMNIFICATION

Section 1. INDEMNIFICATION. To the fullest extent permitted by law, this corporation shall indemnify its directors, officers, employees, and other persons described in Corporations Code Section 5238(a), including persons formerly occupying on) with positions, against all expenses, indements, fines, serif-ments, and other amounts artically and reasonably measured by them in connection with any "proceeding," as that term is used in that section, and including an action by or as the right of the outpotation by reason of the fact that the person is or was a person described in that section. "Expenses," as used in this by law, shall have the same norming as in that section of the Corporations Code.

On written request to the Board of Directors by any person seeking indemnification under Corporations Code. Section 5238 (b) or Section 5238 (c) the Board of Directors shall promptly decide order Corporations Code Section 5238

Amended and Restated Bylines of Magaolia Educational & Restaten Foundation Adapted: 6/16/18 Amended: 4/19/12.4/12/13.52/12/13.1/9/15.2/16/15.8/11/16.50/26/16.12/3/16. 10/11/18/9/22/19 (e) whether the applicable standard of randoct we forth in Corporations Code Section 5238 (b) or Section 5238 (c) has been per and, if so, the Board of Directors shall authorize independentian

ARTICLE XV INSURANCE

Section 1. INSURANCE. This corporation shall have the right to purchase and maintain insurance to the full extent permitted by law on lachalf of its directors, officers, employees, and other agents, to cover any flability asserted against or spearned by any director, officer, employees, or agent in such enpurity or utiling from the director's, officer's, employees's, or agent's stotus as such.

ARTICLE XVI MAINTENANCE OF CORPORATE RECORDS

Section 1. MAINTENANCE OF CORPORATE RECORDS. This corputation shall keep:

- Adequate and current books and records of account.
- b. Written manutes of the proceedings of the Board and committees of the Board: and
- Such reports and records as required by law.

ARTICLE XVH INSPECTION RIGHTS

Section 1. DIRECTORS RIGHT TO INSPECT. Every director shall have the right at any mesonable time to inspect the corporation's looks, researds, documents of every kind, physical properties, and the records of each subsiding as permitted by California and federal law. The inspection may be made in person or by the docwton's agent or attorney. The right of inspection includes the right to copy and make extracts of documents as permitted by California and federal law. The instances where the right to inspect roughle with California and federal law. This right to inspect may be circumscribed in instances where the right to inspect conflicts with California or federal law (e.g., restructions on the release of educational) records under FEREN pertaining to access to books, cocords, and documents.

Section 2. ACCOUNTING REODROS AND MUNUTES. On written demand on the corporation, may director may inspect, copy, and make extracts of the accounting books and records and the minutes of the proceedings of the Board of Directors and commutees of the Soard of Directors at any reasonable line for a purpose reasonably related to the director's interest as a director. Any such inspection and copying may be made in person or by the director's agent or attorney. This right of inspection extends to the records of any subsidiary of the corporation.

Section 3. MAINTENANCE AND INSPECTION OF ARTICLES AND BYLAWS. This corporation shall keep st its principal California office the original or a copy of the articles of incorporation and bylaws, as amended to the current date, which shall be open to inspect on by the directors at all reasonable times during office hours. If the corporation has no business office in California, the Secretary shall, on the written request of any director, furnish to that director a copy of the orthogen of incorporation and bylaws, as anneaded to the current date.

Amended and Restated Bylaws of Magnalia Educational & Research Foundation Page 11 of 13. Adopted: 6/16/08 Amended: 4/59/12, 4/11/13, 12/12/13, 1/9/15, 2/16/15, B/11/16, 50/26/16, 13/3/16, 10/13/16, 10/13/16, 10/12/19

ARTICLE XVIII REQUIRED REPORTS

Section 1. ANNUAL REPORTS. The Board of Directors shall cause an annual report to be sent to itself (the members of the (sound of Directors) within 1211 days after the end of the corporation's fiscal year. That report shall comain the (ollowing information, in appropriate detail

- We assets and liabilities, including the trust funds, or the corporation us of the end of the fiscal year;
- b. The principal changes in assets and liabilities, and using trust funds,
- c. The corporation's revenue or reneipes, both unposteigend and restricted to particular purposes;
- The corporation's expenses or distorregiment for both general and restricted purposes;
- e. Any information required under these bylaws: and
- Agrindependent accompany's report or, if copy, the confidence of an authorized officer of the corporation that such statements were prepared without audat from the corporation's books and records.

Section 2. ANNUAL STATEMENT OF CERTAIN TRANSACTIONS AND INDEMNIFICATIONS. The corporation shall comply with the reporting prepirements of Corporations Code Section 63.22.

ARTICLE XIX BYLAW AMINDMENTS

Section 1. BYLAW AMENDMENTS. The Board of Directors may adopt, amend or repedition of these Bylaws by a majority of the directors provent at a meeting duly held at which a quorum is present, except that no amendment shall make any provisions of these Bylaws inconsistent with the corporation's Articles of Incorporation, or any laws. The Board of Directors may only amend these Bylaws provisions fixing the authorized number of directors or establishing procedures for the noncination or appointment of directors by unanimous suite of all directors then in office. This section may only be amended by the unanimous vate of the all the directors then in office.

ARTICLEXX FISCAL YEAR

Section 1. FISCAL YEAR OF THE CORPORATION. The fiscal year of the corporation shall begin on July 2st and end on June 30st of each year.

Amended and Restated Bylass of Magaola Educational & Research Foundation: Page 12 0513. Adapted: 5756/08 Amended: 4/19/12, 4/11/13, 12/12/13, 179/55, 2/56/15, 8/15710, 10/26/16, 11/3/16, 10/3116, 10/3

CERTIFICATE OF SECRETARY

; certify that I am the duly elected and acting Secretary of the Magnolia Eductional & Research Konstitution, a California popprofit public benefit corporation: that these amended and restated bylawis consisting of 13 pages including this "Certificate of Secretary", one the bylaws of this corporation as adopted by the Board of Directors on September 22, 2009; and that these amended and restated bylaws have not been amended or modified since that date.

- a/23/2019

Ms. Barbara Torres Secretary

Amended and Restated Bylaws of Magnolus Educational & Restarch Foundation Adopted: 6/16/08 Amended: 4/19/12, 4/11/13, 12/12/13, 1/9/15, 2/16/15, 8/11/16, 10/26/16, 11/3/16, 10/11/18:9/22/19

Page 13 of 13

CONFLICT OF INTEREST POLICY

Ibard Governance Pulletes.

Conflict of Interest Policy

MAGNOLIA EDUCATIONAL & RESEARCH FOUNDATION CONFLUE OF INTEREST POLICY

I. PURPOSE

The purpose of this Conflict of Interest Policy ("Policy") is to protect Magnula Macational & Research Foundation's ("Charter Sciend") interests when all is contemplating entering into a transaction or strengeneous that adgle benefit the private interest of an officer or director of the Charter School. This Policy is intended to supplement, but not replace, (i) any applicable state and ficient) have governing conflicts of interest applicable to Colfecture public Charter schools; and (ii) the Charter School's Conflict of Interest Code, adopted pursuant to the Political Reform Art (Government Code Section Scorm er seq.), including the reduktis attached thereto.

0. DESIGNATED EMPLOYEES

Employees of this Charter School, including including includers of the Board of Directors ("Board") and candidates for election and/or apparitment to the Board, who hold positions that incruise the nonking or partocipation in the making, of derivious that may foreseeably have a material offers on any cinnetical interest, shall be Thesaperteel employees." We designated powerous are Ested in "Appendix A," which is hereby incorporated by reference, attached to the Charter School's Conflict of Interest Code.

IG. DISQUALIFICATION

No designated employee shall make, participate in making, as tay to use his (her official position to influence may Charter School dee some wher), beyone knows or has reason to know will have a reasonably forewordle conteriol, financial effect, distinguishable from its effect on the public generally, no the official or a member of his or her immediate from by.

IV: MANNER OF DISQUALIFICATION

Non-Board Member Designated Engloyces

When a non-Scord pseudor designated employre determines that he/she should not rook- a devision because of a dispublying interest, he/she should subject a wroten disclosure of the disqualifying interest to his/her indeediate supervisor. The supervisor shall immediately reason the matter to another employee and shall forward the disclosure notice to the Charter School Frincipal who shall second the employee's disqualification. In the case of a designated employee who is head of an agency, this determination and deschance shall be made to writely to be?/her apprinting authority.

B. Bosrd Member Designated Employees

Based members shall desclose a designal-fying interest at the meeting during which consideration of the decision takes place. After disclosure of the discussivitying interest and all posterial facts, be/she shall leave the Board meeting while the determination of a conflict of interest is discussed and yetwe upon. The remaining based members shall decide if a conflict of interest exists.

Barral Genergeance Policies - Conflict of Interest Policy Adopted: 7/21/26 - Amended: Fage 1 of 2.

57

67 of 73

Roard Gavernance Policies

Conflict of Interest Policy

This disclosure shell be made part of the Board's precting monates. The Board meeting minutes shall include the names of the persons who disclosed of experisive were found to have a disqualifying interest in connection with an actual or possible conflict of interest. the nature of the disclosifying interest, any actual taken to determine whether a conflict of interest was present, and the Board's decision as to whether a conflict of interest in fact existed

The ilevery member shall refer from participating in the decision in only way (i.e. the Roard member with the disqualifying interest shall refer from voting on the matter and influencing or attempting to influence the vote unthe matter) and examply with any applicable provisions of the Charter School by saws.

Board Governance Policies - Conflict of Interest Policy Adopted: 7/21/46 - Amended: Page 2 of 2

CONFLICT OF INTEREST CODE

MAGNOLIA EDUCATIONAL & RESEARCH FOUNDATION CONFLICT OF INTEREST CODE

The Political Reform Act (Government Code Section 81000, et seq.) requires state and local government agencies to adopt and promulgate conflict of interest codes. The Fair Political Practices Commission has adopted a regulation (2 California Code of Regulations §18730) that contains the terms of a standard conflict of interest code, which can be incorporated by reference in an agency's code. After public notice and hearing, the standard code may be amended by the Fair Political Practices Commission to conform to amendments in the Political Reform Act. Therefore, the terms of 2 California Code of Regulations Section 18730 and any amendments to it duly adopted by the Fair Political Practices Commission are hereby incorporated by reference. This regulation and the attached Appendices, designating positions and establishing disclosure categories, shall constitute the conflict of interest code for the Magnolia Educational & Research Foundation. (MERF)

Individuals holding designated positions shall file statements of economic interests with the MERF, which will make the statements available for public inspection and reproduction (Government Code § 81008). All statements will be retained by MERF.

Magnolia Educational & Research Foundation Conflict of Interest Code

APPENDIX A DESIGNATED POSITIONS

Designated Positions	Disclosure Category
Members of the Governing Board	1,2
Corporate Officers (e.g., CEO/President, CFO/Treasurer, Secretary	/) 1,2
Chief External Officer	1, 2
Regional Director - South	1, 2
Regional Director - North	1, 2
Chief Operations Officer	1, 2
Chief Academic Officer	1, 2
Chief Accountability Officer	1, 2
Principals	3
Consultants/New Positions	•

*Consultants/New Positions shall be included in the list of designated positions and shall disclose pursuant to the broadest disclosure category in the code, subject to the following limitation:

The CEO/President or designee may determine in writing that a particular consultant or new position, although a "designated position," is hired to perform a range of duties that is limited in scope and thus is not required to fully comply with the disclosure requirements in this section. Such written determination shall include a description of the consultant's or new position's duties and, based upon that description, a statement of the extent of disclosure requirements. The CEO/President or designee's determination is a public record and shall be retained for public inspection in the same manner and location as this conflict of interest code (Government Code § 81008).

Magnolia Educational & Research Foundation Conflict of Interest Code

à

APPENDIX B DISCLOSURE CATEGORIES

Category 1

Designated positions assigned to this category must report:

- a. Interests in real property located in whole or in part within a two-mile radius of:
 - The Los Angeles Unified School District, the Santa Ana Unified School District, or the San Diego Unified School District, or
 - Any facility utilized by MERF's charter schools, or
 - A proposed site for a MERF facility.
- b. Investments and business positions in business entities, or sources of income (including gifts, loans, and travel payments) that engage in the purchase or sale of real property or are engaged in building construction or design.

Category 2

Designated positions assigned to this category must report:

a. Investments and business positions in business entities or sources of income (including receipt of gifts, loans, and travel payments) that are contractors engaged in the performance of work or services, or sources that manufacture, sell, repair, rent or distribute school supplies, books, materials, school furnishings or equipment of the type to be utilized by MERF.

Category 3

Designated positions assigned to this category must report:

a. Investments and business positions in business entities or sources of income (including receipt of gifts, loans, and travel payments) that are contractors engaged in the performance of work or services, or sources that manufacture, sell, repair, rent or distribute school supplies, books, materials, school furnishings or equipment of the type to be utilized by the designated position's department. For the purpose of this category a Principal's department is his/her entire school.

Magnolia Educational & Research Foundation Conflict of Interest Code This is the last page of the conflict of interest code for Magnolia Educational & Research Foundation.



CERTIFICATION OF FPPC APPROVAL

Pursuant to Government Code Section 87303, the conflict of interest code for Magnolia Educational & Research Foundation was approved on 1/1/2017. This code will become effective on 1/2/1 2017.

Brian G. Lau Senior Commission Counsel Fair Political Practices Commission

www.magnoliapublicschools.org

Magnolia Public Schools - Nominating/Governance Committee Meeting - Agenda - Thursday November 18, 2021 at 5:00 PM